




Fiscal Year 2012 Financial Highlights

In thousands except per share amounts

Fiscal year ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Revenue 5859218 5591296 5122633

Operating Income 387432 319444 199554

Adjusted Operating Income 429219 392480 313157

EBITDA 111 462637 400047 295317

Adjusted EBITDA 11 488060 444442 368323

Net Income Loss 239955 84694 25419

Adjusted Net Income 11 227194 157511 97001

Per Diluted Common Share

Net Income Loss 1.70 0.66 0.22

Adjusted Net Income 1.61 1.24 0.83

At March 31 2012 2011 2010

Cash Provided by Used in Operating Activities 360046 296339 270484

Free Cash Flow 283121 207555 221213

Total Debt 965425 994328 1568632

Total Backlog 10804304 10923665 9012923

These measures are non-GAAP financial measures Please see page 67 of this report for reconciliation of these measures to G/4AP and discussion of why the

Company is presenting this information
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Dear Colleagues and Shareholders

In all walks of life our most trusted colleagues and

friends have this in common We can count on them

No matter what the situation or challenge they

will be there for us Booz Allen Hamilton is trusted

in that way You can count on us

In fiscal 2012 Booz Allen delivered enduring results for our clients and solid earnings for

our investors We provided rewarding professional opportunities for our employees and

much-needed support to our communities

Every day Booz Allens clients perform missions that matter protecting our national interests

and shielding information systems and critical infrastructure from cyber attack improving

healthcare safeguarding our financial systems optimizing energy resources and transforming

transportation systems to make them safer and more efficient

Even under the best of conditions missions this complex and critical require astute strategy

and solid execution Todays unpredictable environment makes effectiveness and efficiency

even more important The United States federal government is in period of significant

uncertainty characterized by funding challenges and budget cuts And our commercial

institutional and not-for-profit clients are affected by changing industry dynamics and global

economic conditions

Yet demand remains high for Booz Allens capabilities and expertise across our diverse portfolio

of clients Today were on the front line developing strategies that make organizations more

agile capable and efficient Were helping clients analyze big data to accelerate and improve

decision making Were developing the technologies and building the solutions to deliver more

and better services to citizens and customers

Booz Allen Hamilton



These id avors agaLn have enabled 3oc icr to iccecd in difficult hus iess erviron iier

ca 202 ye urued ta ow venre nd nprovc iia if althou3t st SlovE ate

VO avc joye over he ast dccad

evcrre rrreasccl 48 pe $o86 bl or

Frc cast ow in rcascd to 33J ru

et ii creo $4 rim $34 ii llioi

otal back og va th lo at Marc 31 2012

To ustel EB 10 cased ercert $488

ust our on yea as oub Ic co any our Board ectors ated rte lv dw dend

md so al dvdcrd cach of ich or als confidence ir ur finan eal tre mid

mrtrrt to urea vol ar sc v3

aunched succssf nploye stock ou chase ororam at mat rore miployecs ownc

ofoir ry

Every one us at Booz Allen focuses the most mpo tant perf rmmrcc dicat

cit success

large owing ocr or agc of our usiness drectIy npae crts ore ii ss ns who

qu ity performa tr ly cou mnts valu thc ndoptl kno vlcdge we br to eac

igage int id corr mitr lent to ake ese ss ns our ay also now that we

sce Yea 2012 Ocean



$686 ctHol cvenoe

$lO8tiHoI 00 HogcfoCwo
90 per on of ever cc denved fro enaege cc ich Booz or woe w-tor

00 cf1 IOyLC3 apO 0O
00 oeeenf of op oyee ooi0 lEafed elfol not friintng croglarre

16 pe eenf phyees governrt if cr oiify etearanerv ito percen were or gEe

ia60 cy or eerflftcofv rid oy opt yees

69 pc cc efoff re fed veto wer

ectoug qcet sax rn etha dS5Ufif is iii no icr oces da
bed ado atd ye ets nab rim it whyve ftc asked supg rtsu oar

ta it yes as earghe ftg da itor drntr stratt is Next tn 00 ta

syst ii an ira yz aid ga tig ertarprb st is sed ha Dm rt icnt xl ci

Ware app cc eth do og sock as toe Etcct vencss ft en El
fan cv yE tc rr sin husnccs dc do iore wth less uflh co nhre

focus r4 iemcr opera ff etc eon nd os nay ips

Gin- its deoend on un to help there preoare for wh its ext id do nO by enttfytn major

id3 iek they aor by bt Id Me apabt wa ed to es on Fo uxa ip cc

i-IN than decace ago we siw cybe scent tv iii olvng th et id ivc ecvly

bu sea cccx eneiea aid cap be- oday we arc ear set cad it pock

esic orb ssxr ee Weae piytrgexp Loegar dtcsisuppotn ntelen

comm yto orovde retwo kdeen advar ci cyhr nal tc and crud ay cssolut

acoss egoverme inertla er itt ra sect rsWeb wad ai

hea their anif al serv i-nec ts robust waL tes to otng xgin

ttoo hcrness rd pro ect vast data ci rd iplywtt iew gula

Soluttor ke tesn qira that Bc Me gdc flex blest car uuttte gtt peol

he rtgtt es Or- eo aborattve culture emotvers to bng Vt est ent bes

va uetc baat to eve astg rre

Ii hsca 2012 we nat-rn-ed ou st -tgy 0006 qua ty growt nct owt en vt

sake -at tuocus ar ets aids vtee ox tetruydff eittae

tiuy onUs foe expa son st aagy beyond lie US Vtderalgove ni-c arc

ito coni ate aid tern oral arkets folhwtng nd the non co npe ag ect cit

wtth our spin-Vtf company In the con- menctal sector wa are focus ng on hat we beheve ts our

weet spot sen epai es the inancial vtces mlthca and energy ndustes wtero

we see stro nterse lions bewee publtc an tortvate secto nten iattonal we are

focused ci th ddle East wtere we see he gteate pporturttics serve tine n-ar sets

Boils Ho



Human Capi Learning and Cnmrnuncatbns Cloud Analytics

Organization Efticien id Jtectivenass Ce isbn Anaytics

Stro agy and Change Management Mission Anaytics

Cybe Tc chnoiogy Enterprise integration

SPategic le noogy lId Innovatia EngYeehng

Systens Daveboprielt Acquisrion Program Management and Logstics

WC expanded our presence in New York City aid Abu Dhab where we wfll 500

open larger offiCe in the Et had rowers

We so made severa key ianges to our senior Le idership Team to bet er

meet market demand lead our 25000 people th cybersecurity top-of

mud iert conce and Booz Allen strergth we elevated Mike McConnell to

the role of vice Chairman responsible for dnvi ig cvber capabihties across al our

markets We named Karen Dahut eader of our grov ing analytics capabilities

and Betty iompson hief personnel officer We also i-ioved Rich Wilhelm to

lead our intelligence business and Pat Peck to drive our E3 initiative

We tapped two of our executve vice presidents to head areas we bel eve have

trong growth potential Mark Cerercser one of our firms most experienced

and accomplished leaders to lead our reentry into the commercial market and

Mark Herman recognized thought leader to oversee cloud-based services We

have made sgnicant nestments these and ether high-growth areas tn bi ild

scale and capability Ou new Booz Allen Cyber Solutions NetworkTM services give

us first-mover advantage in protecting client nfrastructures and information onnect ng our

clients th thousands of cyber experts technologies and solutions through dy ianic and

ntegrated network of cybor centers and laboratoes

As the year progressed we also made several moves to free up funds to iivest growth

areas and to position the firm for success in our core riarkets lhcse included the necessary

if dificult actions to reduce the size of senior and middle management ranks We created

nore rirbe finarca structure by cmvng costs from infrastructure and averhead

fine-tuned our portfolio by divesting our state aid local transportation business And to ensure

that all employees protect our institution and our ient ust we devoted significant attention

to ethics and complance

Thesc are the kinds dens ons good companies make chal enging times and over time

tfese tions wi Make Boot Allen even more ccessful secure and exciting place for

our people to grc aid excel
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An integrated approach enables

effective cybersecurity

Department of Veterans Aftabs

new information security strategy protects veterans

health records from cyber attack

Sophisticated cyber threats challenge all organizations but when hackers target healthcare systems their

attacks can compromise sensitive patient data and disrupt the medical technology used to save lives

This threat became reality at the Department of Veterans Affairs VA When two laptops and an external

hard drive were reported missing from the agency network that spans more than 1500 facilities across

the countryand supports more than 400000 end-users and over 700000 deviceswas instantly at

risk When subsequent cyber attack breached its network the VA took immediate action to implement

robust cybersecurity solutions to safeguard the exposed personally identifiable data and health records

on approximately 26 million veterans and active duty military personnel

To put additional safeguards in place the VA further consolidated all its information technology assets

under the Assistant Secretary for Information and Technology creating new Office of Information Security

of more than 500 people Booz Allen worked side by side with the VA to help stand up this state-of-the-art

information security organization We helped develop strategic tactical and operational plans that would

address near-term security and compliance considerations and shape the direction of the VAs security

program We then partnered to insulate the network from future attacks quickly adjusting our staffing

model to provide near-real-time network forensics and response capability Drawing on resources from

across the firm we also helped deploy security tools to 340000 laptops in six-month period and created

an analytic capability that provides the VA with common operating picture of the current security status

of its global facilities To support the new organization we helped execute an award-winning security

communications campaign to describe technical concepts to its security workforce and distribute more

general security messages to diverse audience of end-users

neIn.ers cocwtse

rhe Olfice of Information Security has evolved into an agile organization that is now

meeting the VA5 ever changing cybersecurity demands Today the VA nas the complete

visibility it needs to engage its entire workforce in waiding off security and privacy

threats detect ann respond to advanced persistent threats and protect the key health

IT assets that provide critical medical services to veterans

Hscai Year 2012 Report
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New Cyber Capability Helps Commercial Enterprises

Manage Risk

Cyber terrorists pose significant and growing threat to

the US and the global commercial ecosystem And when

they strike enterprises can lose not just revenues and

valuation but also brand reputation customer trust and

confidence intellectual property and much more With so

much at stake companies must secure key organizational

functions to reduce the number and cost of cyber

incidents improve response limes and strategically align

their security programs to proactively manage cyber risks

Todays threats call for comprehens.ive integrated

strategies that align with business risk management

oblectives across the enterprise To help companies

assess risks and enact effective strategies Booz

Allen recently assembled team of experienced cyber

expertshighly credentialed professionals with expertise

across the financial services intelligence and defense

industries Their mission apply their collective insights

and experiences to identify the root causes of cyber

vulnerability in the commercial sector and build next-

generation maturity model that helps organizations more

quickly recognize and manage emerging conditions that

aCect cyher operations

The team built dynamic model CyberM3 that helps

organizations measure manage and mature their

cybºrsecurity programs The model encompasses

not bnly technology and analics but also business

prodess engineering and human capital development

It alo factors in the role that large systemically critical

organizations play in commercial market.s and the

ecohomy As result it has yielded tremendous insight

into the ways companies identify and manage threats

at a.network level The model has also yielded new

app oach that revolutionizes traditional perimeter-based

security by building on dynamic tiered network structures

CyherM3 is helping organizations transform their

cybarsecurity programs from the ground upand

implAment key components across all three dimensions

of tdchnology people and policy Booz Allen is now

working to validate refine and polish the model

testing it with multiple clients in financial services and

other markets to broaden its application and respond

effectively to the diverse needs of stakeholders

10 Booz Aren Hamrton



Dynamic Network Defends Critical IT Assets
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Nuclear Facilities Secure Vital Digital Assets

As US nuctear pov er olarLs upgiaJe om analog to digital

systems they require new solutions that nsulate Item from

yber attacks that can impact safety secunty economic vtality

and qua of Ii across the vast regions they serve Today

he nation 94 act ye nuclea facilities face diverse challenges

as they rork to meet ngorous new federal cybersecurty

requrements Booz Allen is helpng the ndusby achieve nea

term coipliance and long term cybersecurity th commercial

iclear eneg ea of experts 2o possess deep exper ence

across the spectrum nformat on technology cue ear

engineenng and nuclear indusry regulation

In parbcu ar ou team helping one nvestor-owned utiltty

mplei lent ilultip cybersecucty requirements before the

govenimenbmandated December 31 2012 dead ne The

team is examining all analog and dgtal components

document how many systems there are dentifying the crihca

digital assets and systems have direct impact on

safety securty and emergency prepaiedness and evaluat ng

and documenting tie systems current in piace to secure

these components To support future comp ance the team

ias recommended and will help implement new tool that

automates compliance management activities captures and

records these activities and makes the data easily accessib

for tests and audts

Meeting these requirements will enable the utlity to orepaie foi

the approced construction of iicv facilities id contin ts

30year e.gccv of prnvding eon ecoiom cal reliab pioven

nuclear power
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Federal rallon .Adndnlst.ration

major transformation of the national airspace system is

improving safety efficiency and capacityand taking air

transportation to new heights

Todays US air traffic control system relies heavily on ground-based radar technology and voice

communicationsaging technologies that can lead to safety and security risks chronic delays and the

economic and environmental consequences of higher fuel consumption The Federal Aviation Administration

FAA is responding with the Next Generation Air Transportation System NextGen Built on the foundation

of an integrated network-centric architecture it will empower operators and vehicles to exchange dynamic

precise data and apply it to maximize safety mobility and sustainability

Technology and systems engineering expertise are critical to project of this magnitude and success

depends on achieving an integrated system-of-systems that brings together advanced air traffic control and

avionics capabilities Moreover to meet higher air traffic volume and drive economic gains and environmental

efficiencies its essential that policy airspace design and workforce competencies evolve on parallel paths

As one of the administrations primary systems engineering and integration partners for its 2020 Systems

Engineering and Research and Mission Analysis Contract Booz Allen is working across the air transportation

industry to help integrate 21st-century technologies that will transform the US air traffic control system We

are providing broad range of integrated support services that also include investment and business case

analysis requirements analysis systems integration training and program/portfolio management

Booz Allen teams are collaborating on many fronts to advance NextGen We developed an approach to

technical cost benefit and risk analysis that helps leaders understand the trade-offs between alternative

NextGen investments The NextGen framework which we worked with several other companies to create

is helping the administration develop analyze and implement the new National Airspace System Enterprise

Architecture We are identifying cost-effective solutions for redesigned air traffic

management infrastructure that will integrate future technologies facilities air traffic

control operations policies and modern workforce And we helped develop new

procedures to reduce flight times and ground delays

Since the ownership of infrastructure assets spans government industry and state and

local entities Booz Allen is applying megacommunitysM approach to engage the multiple

agencies responsible for NextGen airlines business aviation operators and general

aviation aircraft owners They are working together to help realize NextGens early benefits
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Providing Warfighters Vital Intelligence and Support
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Engaged Community Takes Back the Streets
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Giving Survivors the

Resources They Need

Wter soldiers make tee ulitzate sacti ice survsrg faT ices

welcome outreach td support dunng their ti oie of need to

secure the benefits cot tlements and servtces set astde for

oem But as the conflicts raq and Afgha stan sti etched

availab resources the Ar sy Casua ty and Mo tuary Affa rs

Operat ons Center CMAOC realized it needed new

contra Led capability to better provide rapid easy access to

ts casualty assistancc office and nechan sri to iieasure

rhe nctdence and quality of assistance provided

rc enhance roomuniation stth so vivors team fron Booz

Allen helped establish the Families irst Cassa ty Call Center

ts sta fo mer military health professionals trai led in helping

with survivor issues documented processes related to

survivor benefits and the most common nqutries and created

comprehensive standard operaung procedures to provide

onsistent le\els of sert ice Next the team surveyed more thai

300 survivors to identify how to better se ye them and helped

astabl sh an axte tdcd national network Army personnel to

rovde ong te no support
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Empowering
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exce Innovative programs are shaping

the workforce of the future

Womsfl Agenda

Opening new pathways to career and personal
and fostering an inclusive work environment

Booz Allen is committed to engaging the absolute best talent to solve our clients toughest challenges

and that means tapping the skills expertise and potential of all our people Today demand for knowledge

workers Is on the rise and women compose greater share of the highly skilled and highly educated talent

pool than at any point in history These factors make attracting and developing talented women business

imperativeand strategic driver that fuels the firms growth In 2010 Booz Allen launched the Womens

Agenda firmwide strategy to integrate and scale our existing efforts enhance our support of womens

professional development and foster more inclusIve work environment in which both women and men can

reach great heights

To promote advancement within Booz Allen the Womens Agenda introduced new programs to support

leadership skill-building and increase exposure Invitational programs are designed to stretch highly

talented staff to take on assignments outside of their traditional roles to help improve their chances of

advancing and provide additional support for women leaders Further mentoring programs facilitate career

development conversations between staff and Influential women leaders and women of color

Externally the Womens Agenda created more focused deliberate plan to expand the firms outreach to

prestigious industry organizations These partnerships benefit Booz Allens many talented women with

increased visibility enhancing their professional development as they speak on panels take on leadership

opportunities and are recognized with nationai awards says Betty Thompson chief personnel officer and

Womens Agenda co-lead These relationships also support these organizations as they serve the broader

community and increase the firms access to diverse candidates with highly specialized skill sets

The Womens Agenda is creating many new opportunities for women at Booz Allen

says Susan Penfleld senior vIce president and agenda co-lead Today women are

responsibie for building and managing significant businesses across all markets

and capabiiities and their achievements are widely recognized The number and

percentage of women in our organization has also grownas has their representation

at the officer and Leadership Team levels Further the success of the Womens

Agenda has paved the way for the development of six additional diversity agendas

Together these initiatives are expanding the climate of inclusion across our firm

and are boosting our reputation as an employer of choice

Teem members dockwfte

from upper left

8at4 Thompson chief

personnel ofllcer Lfta.L Bethel

lead Mafia Der
wior won pmsMan Sonle

Opeochle lead aaaoclatc

Susan PSsenior Woe

peeldent and Jbmmy

Summea aasoclete are worW

lngtoadvanceBoozAllenb

WomenbAgenda This fltmwlde

fltleilse is he4ilog BoozAllen

attract new ffilent enhance

dlversltc and prsvlde women

with mentorlng and leadership

development opportunities

that enhance their careers

Fiscal Year 2012 Report 17



Strengthening Loca Support Networks for Veterans
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At ach summit local governrcent caders businesses and

no cproft leaders gathered to explore how best to overcome the

obstac es faced by service rceribeis and thei famlies as they

seek to access reeded services Part nipants urther sought to

imp ove pon services al eady in place Atte does envsione

innovative pa tccrships strengthened ties to local eg ono

and ationa resources and bui ion Cs acros ocatlo cs and

ganizatiors Surimit leaders rth identified concicte acbons

to imorovo intorrcat on systems enharce vilual tools id

veterans need and help navigate access to care

Booz Allen 1vi sea successfu approaches and models for
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Workfoice Deveoprnent

Learning Solutions Build HighPerformance Organizations

Each day government workers and military personnel

confront increasingly diverse and complex issues that

affect everything from national and economic security

to health and welfare As new challenges arise and as

new professionals enter the workforce federal agencies

manage and improve their performance by providing

workers the specialized training and professional

development they need to maintain mission readiness

Booz Allen develops and deploys comprehensive and

integrated workforce management and employee

development learning solutions that help clients optimize

their human capital We identify the vectors that have the

greatest impact on organizational objectives and missions

and apply our functional expertise in learning analysis

and strategy instructional design and development

instructional implementation and sustainment and

learning program management to deliver practical

current real-world training

In each case Booz Allen experts consider the learning

content required the instructional methodologies

that will best engage professionals and available

technologies that can deliver optimal reach and results

For example professionals who work in fast-paced

dynamic environments respond well to immersive learning

programs that apply an appropriate mix of instructional

Booz Allen also helps clients develop and execute large-

scale Web-based learning management systems that

deliver the benefits of distance learning and streamlined

administrative processes For one government client our

team drew on Booz Allens robust multimedia eLearning

capability to design innovative learning products and

formats that trained thousands of professionals around

the world with fewer instructors at lower cost and

with less time in the classroom These formats featured

mix of classroom instruction distance learning and

other point-of-need learning approaches The team

designed Web-based portals and other collaboration

tools eg wikis blogs and social networking to

facilitate further dialogue and collaboration between

learners before during and after training

simulations game-based learning

interactive storytelling exercises

and serious board games in either

live or virtual environment We work

with clients to develop customized

programs that actively engage teams

in experiences that require problem

formulation analysis decision

making and communication
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New operating models stretch

budgets and enhance missions

ficjrefti aron.auttics and 1xace

Rigorous cost analysis improves budgeting and

scheduling processesandclears new space exploration

strategy for liftoff

At time of shifting budget priorities agencies must compete vigorously for future funding And Congress

is demanding more rigor than ever around the programs agencies developand the budgets they submit

NASA successfully met this challenge in 20.1.1 when Congress agreed to fund its new Space Launch

Systema long-term investment that will provide an entirely new national capability while ensuring

continued US leadership in space

Given the high visibility of this program as well as the companion Multiple Purpose Crew Vehicle and Ground

Operations programs the Office of Management and Budget required NASA to provide an independent cost

assessment of its budget estimate early in the life cycle to ensure that it had based acquisition planning

on realistic and achievable cost and schedule estimates This scenario-based analysis of the systems

rocket crew vehicle and ground operations would also help the NASA administrator evaluate the various

architecture options and defend NASAs recommendation NASA selected Booz Alien for this project based

on our deep expertise in decision analytics space systems and engineering

Under significant time constraints Booz Allen assessed the bases of estimates for budgets schedules

reserve strategies and risks to determine whether they were well documented comprehensive accurate

credible traceable and executable Our team of budget analysts engineers and systems integrators

determined that the point estimates were reasonable for the near-term horizon but questioned several

assumptions behind the long-term projections Booz Allens assessment helped reveal that the programs

lacked sufficient reserves to cover the different scenarios and that several technical risks could have

significant impacts on cost and schedule The team also identified the need to perform quantitative risk/

sensitivity analyses

Our experts made several recommendations to help improve the budgeting and

scheduling processes going forward These included developing an integrated master

schedule across the projects rocket crew vehicle and ground operations components

while maintaining rigorous distinction between them in budgets Booz Allen adopted

new structure for its report that made it easier for NASA and ultimately Congress

to evaluate each component The outcome was so successful that Congress asked

NASA to adopt this structure in future budgets
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Moving from Cost Cutting to True Mission Performance
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As the Department of Defense winds down two wars

US Central Command USCENTC0M is reviewing its

current operational model and budgeting process to

build new strategies for achieving increased efficiency

greater transparency and lowered costs Responding to

directive by the Secretary of Defense USCENTCOM is

evaluating its personnel needs and functional processes

and the enabling IT as potential sources of savings

Reengineering information systems is complex

challenge however since defense analysts rely on

interdependent systems to perform diverse functions

and tasks Any proposed new strategies and business

processes must continue to support these mission

functions adapt quickly and flexibly to changing

environment and demonstrate how these investments

help analysts produce intelligence

In 2011 the client began formal deeftdive analysis

to meet three goals determine the current and new

mission sets that its enterprise architecture needs to

support identyt current capability gaps and prioritize

and justify new investments The client turned to

Booz Allen to help fulfill this

important mission Experts in

analytics cyber technologies

and strategic technology and

innovation applied the firms

Miss/on Engineering service to

identig functional needs within each mission area align

them with applicationlevel programs and visualize both

redundancies and gaps

For the first time the client will enter the budgeting

process with endlo-end IT services that package all the

people processes technology and information needed to

support specific business/mission capabilities Leaders

will understand who supports their IT requirements

what IT does for them and where they can create iT

efficiencies Service managers will have the knowledge

relationships and control to respond quickly to new

demands The new Service Definition process will also

reduce costs improve return on investment and control

operational risksall while effectively supporting the

missions that intelligence analysts perform

Central Command

Mission Engineering Helps Contain IT Costs CC

FCC
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ground up 0ttr
USArmy

New battlespace technology helps soldIers detect enemy
communIcatIons and locate ImprovIsed explosIve devIces

In Iraq and Afghanistan US soldiers in reconnaissance patrols forward operating bases and combat

outposts confront life-threatening ambushes at any time To meet this constantly evolving threat the US

Army urgently needed new tactics and technologies to better understand the battlespace and maintain

tactical advantage Booz Allen In partnership with the US Army and key subcontractor helped design

test produce field and sustain the Wolfhound radio direction finder system This versatile system

provides soldiers with critical information to detect enemy communications and trace the signal path

from command and control nodes It helps protect soldiers from improvised explosive devicesand

often helps them locate the enemy directly And unlike traditional equipment its lightweight handheld

and easy to use

This project involved significant hardware software and platform systems Integration in which Booz Allen

applIed Its expertise in supply chain and logistics training engineering and science cyber technologies

acquisition and program management and enterprise integration and purchasing We developed and

tested the prototype selected manufacturing partner and managed the manufacturing process and

developed tool that tracked components and deliveries down to the pert number to keep each biweekly

production delivery on track

Over an eight-month period Booz Allen fielded 385 units on time and without single recalland 18

percent under budget to save the Army $7.7 million As the prime contractor Booz Allen oversees ongoing

task management development of technical documentation and training materials system fielding

training activities in-theater and within the continental United States and system
Team members csockwlse

frcm upper left life-cycle support Today commanders at every level have touted the system as one
Oase LudwIg senftrassocS

of the most critical programs In-theater Wolfhound now fully Incorporated into newly

formed tactics is helping squads platoons and base camps gather intelligence on

high-value targets This reliable cost-effective life-saving devicerated as one of

the top-b required systems in Operation Enduring Freedomhas also earned an

Army Greatest Invention of the Year award

gather field
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New Biometrics Unit Develops and Tests Advanced Tools
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Strategic Plan Targets Public Health Challenges in Uganda
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Turning bigdata into



Breakthrough technologies enhance

analytics to boost performance

Mercy

Applying analytics to health records leads to new practices

that save lives and reduce costs

For more than 150 years the healthcare system Mercy has pursued mission to dehver compassionate

care and exceptional service Hospital-acquired infections pose direct threat to this missionand to the

systems bottom line So when administrators grew concerned about mortality rates from sepsis severe

sepsis and septic shock in Mercy hospitals they attacked the problem read-on

As an early advocate of electronic medical records Mercy had built large sets of patient treatment

and outcomes data But as with many hospitals it needed an effective methodology for analyzing this data

and converting it into useful knowledge and information team from Booz Allen provided the analytical

clinical administrative and business expertise to identify red flags for sepsis and help implement new

processes to improve outcomes

Booz Allens biomedical informaticists and advanced analytics experts helped develop an event-centric

ontology that could harness both structured data from patient charts and unstructured notes added by

medical personneHand speed up the real-time discovery and analysis of electronic health records

Booz Allen examined 27000 anonymized patient health records that included thousands of data fields per

record Our team then analyzed compliance with international standards of care for sepsis severe sepsis

and septic shock and compared that compliance with patient outcomes The data led to new set of

clinical indicators that may identify high-risk patients so caregivers can prioritize their care

Analysis also revealed an opportunity to improve patient outcomes When the data revealed gap in

compliance with international standards Mercy developed an educational campaign to promote best

practices associated with treating patients with sepsis

Fan aasoniatn

Fenc- Fin

associate and

associate disc/n pad

./nncvsdssppnnsct

IS/SilOS

This project will enable Mercy to reduce sepsis mortality protect patients reduce

overall health costs and free up financial and staffing resources for other priorities

It also substantiates new advanced analytics methodology with the potential to

help other healthcare organizations improve patient care

ins
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New Predictive Models
Inform the National

Childrens Study
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Our \rorld inc easingly measured instrur ertcd

monitored an automated in woys that generate

edible amounts of rch ard complex data Ibis data-

driven wironment creates new hurdles for proving

intelligence aralysis whch aepends the ability to

draw insights value from disparate data As data

lows analysts need powerful capabilities to quickly

and precisely pmcess large and often unstructured

yber data sets to generate nea rca tir results

Booz tie was called on to help ov missior

orfon noe mduce coss ard wdcmnz roional

ntelligence sstcms Aop ying Os deep iderstanding of

the ierts rission the tean determined how best to

nccomodate todays arge comolex data volumes----and

how build io the flexibility to adapt to futuie needs

Rathe th sing cloud technology for infrastructure

tho team focused on at yi cloud ar alytic to extract

noie val ie fa fter from massive data sets Building on

ox sOny rfi tructurr 0007 len construe ed

private cloud that enables the client to leverage iore

ot its computing resources for advanced analytics The

team then inoduced cloud analybcs solution that

used advanced cyber predictive analytics and existing

data to forecast potentia cyber attack events and

detected anomalies in normal background data to

extract potentially significant information and patterns

he cloud analytics solut on is now accesmble throughout

the die organization ano analysts are relying on

data mining machine learning and other automated

arolyss techniques to ftansform data into knowledge

and knowledge into action Features such as enOty

assification pred ctive modeis pro-computation ana

aggressive indexing are also providing quicker insigho-

including the ability to answer previously unanswerable

questio As cloud analytics proves its value other

organizadons also are corsidering this model as they

espond to new White House mandates to strengthen

analytical capabFities

Innovative Cloud Analytics
Solution Turns Knowledge
Into Action
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Creati sustainable



tutures Strategies and technologies are

bringing green initiatives to life

Energy lnftladvos Task Force

Public-private partnerships are helping the US Army achieve
its longsterm energy and sustalnability goals

Rising energy security challenges stringent energy efficiency standards escalating fuel prices and concerns

about greenhouse gas emissions have rnade renewable energy an Important Department of Defense priority

To chart an energy-secure future US Army installation leaders established an aggressive target to draw

25 percent of power from renewable sources by 2025 Given the estimated multibillion-dollar investment

required to achieve this the Army is unlocking the value of underused or undeveloped Army property by

pursuing public-private partnerships with Industry to finance and build economically viable large-scale

renewable energy projects These projects will optimize available renewable resources reduce fossil fuel

consumption and build energy resilience

creating large nationwide renewable energy portfolio requires consistent tested and market-focused

methodologies It also demands operational discipline functional expertise In finance policy real estate

and renewable energy and the proven ability to engage diverse stakeholders and secure their support Booz

Allen is helping the Army build this portfolio The team began by engaging industry and Army stakeholders

and using their input to establish strategy processes and policies We developed Renewable Screening

tool to analyze renewable resources state regulations and financial drivers The teams analysis has

generated preliminary pipeline of project opportunities and is helping Army leaders choose the most

cost-effective high-impact projectsand identify the optimal transaction structure for each one

Booz Allen also recommendedand the Army has since Implementedan Energy Initiatives Task Force

to execute these projects The task force serves as single point of contact for collaboration with private

industry and oversees streamlined business practices that lead to viable defined and

well-supported projects Booz Allen continues to support this task force by providing

full-spectrum capabilitiesfrom identifying projects to engaging communities to

Themsa Ofto

negotiating financial structures to managing the closing process
lead asaocMe

In less than 12 months our team helped the Army Identify robust pipeline of energy

opportunities that will be the core of the Armys promise to build one gigawatt of
finance maIS
end mnevmwe energ to renewable capacity in service of the 2025 goal With our support the Army us now
fleW the USAjrmy build

publloprtveteperbwshlpe executing successful private sector strategy and product portfolio supported by

liable enact sophisticated tools and communications strategy to ensure that key stakeholders

understand the programs purpose and value
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Booz Allen Hamilton

Holding Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation as of March 31 2012

and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations

comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended March 31 2012

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present

fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position

of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation at March 31 2012

and 2011 and the consolidated results of its operations and its

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

March 31 2012 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporations internal control over

financial reporting as of March 31 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and our report dated May 30 2012 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

7LLP

Ernst Young LLP

McLean Virginia

May 30 2012
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Consolidated Balance heets

Amounts in thousands except share and per share data

March 31 2012 2011

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 484368 192631

Accounts receivable net of allowance 1077315 1111004

Prepaid expenses 32090 33497

Income taxes receivable 46794

Other current assets 17096 23311

Total current assets 1657663 1360443

Property and equipment net 191079 173430

Deferred income taxes 7790 41409

Intangible assets net 223834 240238

Goodwill 1188004 1163549

Other long-term assets 46421 44954

Total assets $3314791 $3024023

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt 42.500 30000

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 443951 406310

Accrued compensation and benefits 357872 396996

Deferred income taxes 59493 21231

Other current liabilities 10630 11598

Total current liabilities 914446 866135

Long-term debt net of current portion 922925 964328

Income tax reserve 55282 90474

Other long-term liabilities 236953 195836

Total liabilities 2129606 2116773

Commitments and contingencies Note 19

Stockholders equity

Common stock Class $0.01 par value authorized 600000000 shares issued 128726324 shares at March 31

2012 and 122784835 shares at March 31 2011 outstanding 128392549 shares at March 31 2012 and 122784835
shares at March 31 2011 1287 1227

Non-voting common stock Class $0.01 par value authorized 16000000 shares issued and outstanding

2487125 shares at March 31 2012 and 3053130 shares at March 31 2011 25 31

Restricted common stock Class $001 par
value authorized 5000000 shares issued and outstanding

1533020 shares at March 31 2012 and 2028270 shares at March 31 2011 15 20

Special voting common stock Class $0003 par value authorized 25000000 shares issued and outstanding

10140067 shares at March 31 2012 and 12348860 shares at March 31 2011 30 37

Treasury stock at cost 333775 shares at March 31 2012 and shares at March 31 2011 5377
Additional paid-in capital 898541 840058

Retained earnings 299379 71330

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 8715 5453

Total stockholders equity 1185185 907250

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 83314.791 $3024023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Amounts in thousands except per share data

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Revenue $5859218 $5591296 $5122633

Operating costs and expenses

Cost of revenue 2934378 2836955 2654143

Billable expenses 1542822 1473266 1361229

General and administrative expenses 903721 881028 811944

Depreciation and amortization 75205 80603 95763

Restructuring charge 15660

Total operating costs and expenses 5471786 5271852 4923079

Operating income 387432 319444 199554

Interest expense 48078 131892 150734

Other net 4520 59488 174

Income before income taxes 343874 128064 48994

Income tax expense 103919 43370 23575

Net income 239955 84694 25419

Earnings per common share Note

Basic 183 0.74 0.24

Diluted 1.70 0.66 0.22

Dividends declared per share 0.09 5.73

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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onsolidated Statements of Compiehensive Income

2012 2011 2010

$239955 $84694 $25419

3262 1635 4516

$236693 $83059 $20903

Amounts in thousands

Fiscal Year Ended March 31

Net income

Actuarial loss related to employee benefits net of taxes Note 14

Comprehensive income

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Amounts in thousands

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $239955 84694 25419

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Gain on sale of state and local transportation business 4082
Transaction costs on sale of state and local transportation business 5432
Depreciation and amortization 75205 80603 95763

Amortization of debt issuance costs 4783 6925 5700

Amortization of original issuance discount on debt 1097 2640 2505

Non-cash expense of debt repayments 43177

Excess tax benefits from the exercise of stock options 16461 15974 1915
Stock-based compensation expense 31263 48678 71897

Loss on disposition of property and equipment 376 41

Deferred income taxes 74785 42763 19837

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net 25275 92693 92386
Income taxes receivable payable 31832 2907 14429
Prepaid expenses 1407 951 150

Other current assets 6215 12941 15672

Other long-term assets 6250 6833 3742
Accrued compensation and benefits 35287 9804 33760

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 40822 52214 110265

Accrued interest 11801 8451 10633
Income tax reserve 35192 10163 2483

Other current liabilities 2373 612 8190
Postretirement obligations 6966 5898 6139

Other long-term liabilities 607 46487 12189

Net cash provided by operating activities 360046 296339 270484

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment 76925 88784 49271
Escrow payments 1384 38280

Proceeds from sale of state and local transportation business 23332

Net cash used in investing activities 53593 87400 10991

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 8757 251135

Cash dividends paid 11906 612401

Repayment of debt 30000 1637850 16100
Net proceeds from debt 1041808 330692

Payment of deferred payment obligation 78000
Excess tax benefits from the exercise of stock options 16461 15974 1915

Stock option exercises 7349 4790 1334

Repurchases of common stock 5377

Net cash used in financing activities 14716 324143 372560

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 291737 115204 113067

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 192631 307835 420902

Cash and cash equivalents end of period $484368 192631 307835

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the period for

Interest 53993 109895 126744

Income taxes 89314 7715 5474

rhe accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stokholders Equity

1457000 1322 1334

34408 34408
Net income 25419 25419
Actuarial loss related

to employee benefits

net of taxes 4516 4516

Comprehensive income

Stock-based compen
sation expense

Dividends paid

Notes and 17

Excess tax benefits

from the exercise

of stock options 1915 1915

Balance at

March 31 2010 102922900 10292350200 24 2028270 20 13345880 40 525652 13364 3818 509583

Issuance of

common stock 16189830 161 702930 250972 251135
Stock Options exercised 4375035 44 1699950 11727 11766

Excess tax benefits

from the exercise of

stock options 15974 15974

Share exchange 702930 702930

Recognition of liability

related to future stock

Option exercises

Note 17 12945 12945
Net income 84694 84694
Actuarial loss related

to employee benefits

net of taxes 1635 1635

Comprehensive income 83059

Stock-baxed compen

sation expense 48678 48678

Balance at

March 31 2011 122784835 12273053130 31 2028270 20 12348860 37 840058 71330 5453 907250

Issuance of

common stock 1080245 11 8749 8760

Stock options exercised 3799989 38 2208793 7315 7346

Excess tax benefits

from the exercise

of stock options 16461 16461

Share exchange 1061255 11 566005 495250

Repurchase of

common stock 333775 5377 5377
Recognition of liability

related to future stock

option exercises

Note 17 5305 5305

Net income 239955 239955

Actuarial loss related

to employee benefits

net of taxes 3262 3262
Comprehensive income -_ 236693

Dividends paid Note 16 11906 11906
Stock-based compen

sation expense 31263 31263

Balance at

March 31 2012 128726324 $1287 2487125 $25 1533020 $15 10140067 $30 333775 $5377 $898541 $299379 $8715 $1185185

The accxmpanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

Amounts in thousands

eoxept share datal

Balance at

March 31 2009

Accumu

Axxumu- lated Other
Class claus Non-voting Class Restricted Class Special voting

lated Compre- TotalCommon Stock Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock
Additional Dencitl hensiue Stock-

Paid-In Retained Income holders
Shares amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Equity

Issuance Of

common stock

Stock Options exercised

Recognition of liability

telated to future Stock

option exercises

Note 17

19070

1586960 16

101316870 1013 2350200 24 2028270 20 14802880 44 1097327 38783 698 1060343

20903

71897 71897

612401 612401
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Amounts in thousands eucept share and per share data or unless otherwise noted

March 31 2012

Overview

OUR BUSINESS

Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation including its wholly

owned subsidiaries or Holding or the Company is an affiliate of

The Carlyle Group or Carlyle and was incorporated in Delaware

in May 2008 The Company provides management and technology

consulting services primarily to the U.S government and its

agencies in the defense intelligence and civil markets The

Company offers clients functional knowledge spanning strategy

and organization analytics technology and operations which it

combines with specialized expertise in clients mission and

domain areas to help solve critical problems The Company

reports operating results and financial data in one operating

segment The Company is headquartered in McLean Virginia

with approximately 25000 employees as of March 31 2012

REFINANCING TRANSACTION

On February 2011 the Company completed refinancing

transaction or Refinancing Transaction which included

amendments of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement or Senior

Secured Agreement by the Second Amended and Restated Credit

Agreement or Senior Secured Agreement as amended to allow

for new term loan facilities with $1.0 billion of principal and

$30.0 million increase to the Companys revolving credit facility

In connection with the Refinancing Transaction the Company

used $268.9 million of cash on hand to repay the remaining

$222.1 million of indebtedness outstanding under the mezzanine

credit facility $21.5 million on the existing senior secured loan

facilities or Senior Credit Facilities and related prepayment

penalties of $6.7 million Refer to Notes 11 and 12 for further

discussion of the Refinancing Transaction

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Effective November 20 2010 the Company consummated its

initial public offering whereby the Company sold 14000000

shares of Class Common Stock for $17.00 per share Effective

December 20 2010 the Company settled the underwriters over-

allotment option and sold an additional 2100000 shares of

Class Common Stock for $17.00 per share The net proceeds

of the initial public offering and over-allotment of $250.2 million

after deducting underwriting discounts and other fees were used

to repay outstanding debt of $242.9 million under the Companys

mezzanine credit facility and related prepayment penalties

of $7.3 million All expenses associated with the initial public

offering have been netted against the proceeds within

stockholders equity

RECAPITALIZATION TRANSACTION AND REPRICING

On December 11 2009 the Company consummated

recapitalization transaction or Recapitalization Transaction which

included amendments of the Senior Secured Agreement to

include new term loan or Tranche Loans with $350.0 million

of principal and the mezzanine credit agreement or Mezzanine

Credit Agreement primarily to allow for the recapitalization and

payment of special dividend This special dividend was declared

by the Companys Board of Directors on December 2009 to be

paid to holders of record as of December 2009 Net proceeds

from Tranche Loans of $341.3 million less transaction costs of

$13.2 million along with cash on hand of $321.9 million were

used to fund partial payment of the Companys deferred

payment obligation or DPO in the amount of $100.4 million and

dividend payment of $4.642 per share or $497.5 million which

was paid on all issued and outstanding shares of Holdings

Class Common Stock Class Non-Voting Common Stock and

Class Restricted Common Stock As required by the Officers

Rollover Stock Plan or Rollover Plan and the Equity Incentive

Plan or EIP the exercise price per share of each outstanding

option was reduced Because the reduction in per share value

exceeded the exercise price for certain of the options granted

under the Rollover Plan the exercise price for those options was

reduced to the $0.01 par value of the shares issuable on

exercise and the holders became entitled to receive cash

payment equal to the excess of the reduction in per share value

over the reduction in exercise price to the par value The

difference between the one cent exercise price and the reduced

value for shares not yet exercised of $54.4 million will be accrued

by the Company as the options vest and will be paid in cash upon

exercise of the options As of March 31 2012 and 2011 the

Company reported $27.7 million and $31.4 million in other long-

term liabilities respectively and $8.9 million and $9.0 million in

accrued compensation and benefits respectively in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the portion of

stock-based compensation recognized which is reflective of the

options vested with an exercise price of one cent Transaction

fees incurred in connection with the Recapitalization Transaction

were approximately $22.4 million of which approximately

$15.8 million were deferred financing costs and are amortized

over the lives of the loans Refer to Note 10 for further discussion

of the DPO Note 11 for further discussion of the amended credit

agreements Note 12 for further discussion of the accounting for

deferred financing costs and Note 17 for further discussion of the

December 2009 dividend and associated future cash payments

as related to stock options
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Notes to Consolidated Financia Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the

accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and

have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States or GAAP All intercompany

balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

The Companys fiscal year ends on March 31 and unless

otherwise noted references to fiscal year or fiscal are for fiscal

years ended March 31 The accompanying consolidated financial

statements present the financial position of the Company as of

March 31 2012 and 2011 and the Companys results of

operations for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to

the current year presentation

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods Areas of

the financial statements where estimates may have the most

significant effect include allowance for doubtful accounts

contractual and regulatory reserves lives of tangible and intangible

assets impairment of long-lived assets accrued liabilities

revenue recognition bonus and other incentive compensation

stock-based compensation realization of deferred tax assets

provisions for income taxes and postretirement obligations

Actual results experienced by the Company may differ materially

from managements estimates

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Substantially all of the Companys revenue is derived from

services and solutions provided to the U.S government and its

agencies primarily by the Companys consulting staff and to

lesser extent subcontractors The Company generates its

revenue from the following types of contractual arrangements

cost-reimbursable-plus-fee contracts time-and-materials

contracts and fixed-price contracts

Revenue on cost-reimbursable plus fee contracts is recognized

as services are performed generally based on the allowable

costs incurred during the period plus any recognizable earned fee

The Company considers fixed fees under cost-reimbursable-plus-

fee contracts to be earned in proportion to the allowable costs

incurred in performance of the contract For cost-reimbursable-

plus-fee contracts that include performance-based fee incentives

which are principally award fee arrangements the Company

recognizes income when such fees are probable and estimable

Estimates of the total fee to be earned are made based on

contract provisions prior experience with similar contracts or

clients and managements monitoring of the performance on

such contracts Contract costs including indirect expenses are

subject to audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency or DCAA

and accordingly are subject to possible cost disallowances

Revenue for time-and-materials contracts is recognized as

services are performed generally on the basis of contract

allowable labor hours worked multiplied by the contract-defined

billing rates plus allowable direct costs and indirect cost burdens

associated with materials used and other direct expenses

incurred in connection with the performance of the contract

Revenue on fixed-price contracts is recognized using percentage-

of-completion based on actual costs incurred relative to total

estimated costs for the contract These estimated costs are

updated during the term of the contract and may result in

revision by the Company of recognized revenue and estimated

costs in the period in which they are identified Profits on fixed-

price contracts result from the difference between incurred

costs and revenue earned

Contract accounting requires significant judgment relative to

assessing risks estimating contract revenue and costs and

making assumptions for schedule and technical issues Due to

the size and nature of many of the Companys contracts

developing total revenue and cost at completion requires the use

of estimates Contract costs include direct labor and billable

expenses an allocation of allowable indirect costs and warranty

obligations Billable expenses is comprised of subcontracting

costs and other out of pocket costs that often include but are

not limited to travel-related costs and telecommunications

charges The Company recognizes revenue and billable expenses

from these transactions on gross basis Assumptions regarding

the length of time to complete the contract also include expected

increases in wages and prices for materials Estimates of total

contract revenue and costs are monitored during the term of the

contract and are subject to revision as the contract progresses

Anticipated losses on contracts are recognized in the period they

are deemed probable and can be reasonably estimated
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Companys contracts may include the delivery of

combination of one or more of the Companys service offerings

In these situations the Company determines whether such

arrangements with multiple elements should be treated as

separate units of accounting based on how the elements are bid

or negotiated whether the customer can accept separate

elements of the arrangement and the relationship between

the pricing on the elements individually and combined

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly

liquid investments having an original maturity of three months or

less The Companys investments consist primarily of institutional

money market funds The Company maintains its cash and cash

equivalents in bank accounts that at times exceed the federally

insured limits The Company has not experienced any losses in

such accounts

VALUATION OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts

against certain billed receivables based upon the latest

information regarding whether invoices are ultimately collectible

Assessing the collectability of customer receivables requires

management judgment The Company determines its allowance

for doubtful accounts by specifically analyzing individual accounts

receivable historical bad debts customer credit-worthiness

current economic conditions and accounts receivable aging

trends Valuation reserves are periodically re-evaluated and

adjusted as more information about the ultimate collectability

of accounts receivable becomes available Upon determination

that receivable is uncollectible the receivable balance and

any associated reserve are written off

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to

concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents

and accounts receivable The Companys cash equivalents are

generally invested in U.S government insured money market

funds and Treasury bills which minimizes the credit risk The

Company believes that credit risk with respect to accounts

receivable is limited as the receivables are primarily with the

U.S government

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and the balances

are presented net of depreciation The cost of software purchased

or internally developed is capitalized Depreciation is calculated

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of

the assets Furniture and equipment is depreciated over five to

ten years computer equipment is depreciated over four years

and software purchased or developed for internal use is

depreciated over one to three years Leasehold improvements are

amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the

lease term Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as

incurred Rent expense is recorded on straight-line basis over

the life of the respective lease The difference between the cash

payment and rent expense is recorded as deferred rent in other

long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets The

Company receives incentives for tenant improvements on certain

of its leases The cash expended on such improvements is

recorded as property and equipment and amortized over the life

of the associated asset or lease term whichever is shorter

Incentives for tenant improvements are recorded as deferred rent

in other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets

and are amortized on straight line basis over the lease term

GOODWILL

Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets

in business acquisition exceeds the fair value of net identifiable

assets on the date of purchase The Company assesses goodwill

for impairment on at least an annual basis on January and

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable The Company

operates as single operating segment and as single reporting

unit for the purpose of evaluating goodwill During the fiscal years

ended March 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company did not

record any goodwill impairment Further the Company does not

consider any of the goodwill at risk of impairment

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of trade name contract backlog and

favorable lease terms The trade name is not amortized but is

tested annually for impairment Contract backlog is amortized

over the expected backlog life based on projected future cash

flows of approximately five to nine years Favorable lease

terms are amortized over the remaining contractual terms of

approximately five years

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews its long-lived assets including property and

equipment and intangible assets for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts

of the assets may not be fully recoverable If the total of the

expected undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the

carrying amount of the asset loss is recognized for any excess

of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset There were

no impairment charges for fiscal 2012 or 2011
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Notes to Consolidated Financia Statements

INCOME TAXES

The Company provides for income taxes as corporation

on income earned from operations The Company is subject to

federal state and foreign taxation in various jurisdictions

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded to recognize

the expected future tax benefits or costs of events that have

been or will be reported in different years for financial statement

purposes than for tax purposes Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are computed based on the difference between the

financial statement carrying amount and tax basis of assets and

liabilities using enacted tax rates and laws for the years in which

these items are expected to reverse If management determines

that some portion or all of deferred tax asset is not more likely

than not to be realized valuation allowance is recorded as

component of the income tax provision to reduce the deferred tax

asset to an appropriate level in that period In determining the

need for valuation allowance management considers all positive

and negative evidence including historical earnings projected

future taxable income future reversals of existing taxable

temporary differences taxable income in prior carryback periods

and prudent feasible tax-planning strategies

The Company periodically assesses its tax positions for all

periods open to examination by tax authorities based on the

latest available information Where it is not more likely that not

that the Companys tax position will be sustained the Company

records its best estimate of the resulting tax liability and interest

in the consolidated financial statements These uncertain tax

positions are recorded as component of income tax expense

As uncertain tax positions in periods open to examination are

closed out or as the assessment of the position is changed the

resulting change is reflected in the recorded liability and income

tax expense Penalties and interest recognized related to the

reserves for uncertain tax positions are recorded as component

of income tax expense

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is the change in equity of business

enterprise during period from transactions and other events

and circumstances from nonowner sources Comprehensive

income is presented in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income Accumulated other comprehensive losses

as of March 31 2012 and 2011 ccnsisted of unrealized losses

on the Companys defined and postretirement benefit plans

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share-based payments to employees are recognized in the

consolidated statements of operations based on their grant

date fair values with the expense recognized over the vesting

period Share-based payments to employees are subject to

graded vesting schedules and are recognized in the consolidated

statements of operations based on their grant date fair values

with the expense recognized on an accelerated basis The

Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to

determine the fair value of its awards at the time of the grant

DEFINED BEENEFIT PLAN AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT

BENEFITS

The Company recognizes the underfunded status of pension and

other postretirement benefit plans on the consolidated balance

sheets Gains and losses prior service costs and credits and any

remaining transition amounts that have not yet been recognized

through net periodic benefit cost are recognized in accumulated

other comprehensive income net of tax effects and will continue

to be amortized as component of net periodic cost The

measurement date the date at which the benefit obligations and

plan assets are measured is the Companys fiscal year end

SELF-FUNDIED MEDICAL PLANS

The Company maintains self-funded medical insurance Self-

funded plans include health maintenance organization preferred

provider organization point of service qualified point of service

and traditional choice Further self-funded plans also include

prescription drug and dental benefits The Company records an

incurred but unpaid claim liability in the accrued compensation

and benefits line of the consolidated balance sheets for self-

funded plans based on an actuarial valuation Data that drives

this estimate is primarily based on claims and enrollment data

provided by third party valuation firm for medical and pharmacy

related costs

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation plan in

accordance with the terms of the underlying plan agreement To

the extent the terms of the contract attribute all or portion of

the expected future benefit to an individual year of the employees

service the cost of the benefits are recognized in that year

Therefore the Company estimates the cost of future benefits that

are expected to be paid and expenses the present value of those

costs in the year as services are provided
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of the Companys cash and cash equivalents trade

accounts receivable and accounts payable approximates its

carrying value at March 31 2012 and 2011 because of the short-

term nature of these amounts The fair value of the Companys

debt instruments approximates its carrying value at March 31

2012 and 2011 The fair value of debt is determined based on

interest rates available for debt with terms and maturities similar

to the Companys existing debt arrangements

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2012 the Company

adopted the following accounting pronouncements none of which

had material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

In June 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board or FASB

issued Accounting Standards Update 2011-05 Presentation of

Comprehensive Income which amends the presentation options

in Accounting Standards Codification Topic 220 Comprehensive

Income This guidance requires companies to present the

components of net income and other comprehensive income

either as one continuous statement or as two consecutive

statements It eliminates the option to present components of

other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes

in stockholders equity The guidance does not change the items

which must be reported in other comprehensive income how

such items are measured or when they must be reclassified to

net income The guidance is effective for interim and annual

periods beginning after December 15 2011 with early adoption

permitted As this guidance impacts presentation only it has

had no effect on the Companys financial condition results of

operations or cash flows The Company elected early adoption

effective June 30 2011 using the two-statement approach

In September 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards

Update 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for Impairment which amends

Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other This guidance

permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine

whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting

unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining

whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill

impairment test described in Topic 350 The guidance is effective

for interim and annual goodwill impairment tests performed for

fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 with early

adoption permitted The Company elected early adoption effective

as of our measurement date January 2012 Based on our

qualitative assessment at January 2012 we believe that it was

not more likely than not that the fair value of our reporting unit

was less than the carrying amount Accordingly the Company

concluded two-step impairment test is not necessary

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB

during fiscal 2012 and through the filing date did not and are not

believed by management to have material impact on the

Companys present or future consolidated financial statements

Earnings Per Share

The Company computes basic and diluted earnings per share

amounts based on net income for the periods presented The

Company uses the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the period to calculate basic earnings per

share or EPS Diluted EPS is computed similar to basic EPS

except the weighted average number of shares outstanding is

increased to include the dilutive effect of outstanding common

stock options and other stock-based awards

The Company currently has outstanding shares of Class

Common Stock Class Non-voting Common Stock Class

Restricted Common Stock and Class Special Voting Common

Stock Class Special Voting Common Stock shares are not

included in the calculation of EPS as these shares represent

voting rights only and are not entitled to participate in dividends

or other distributions Unvested Class Restricted Common

Stock and unvested Class Restricted Common Stock holders

are entitled to participate in dividends or other distributions

These unvested shares participated in the payment of the

Companys dividend declared and paid in the fourth quarter of

fiscal 2012 and as such EPS is calculated using the two-class

method whereby earnings are reduced by the dividends declared

and paid to the restricted shareholders
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reconciliation of the income used to compute basic and diluted EPS for the periods presented are as follows

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Earnings for basic computations $238761 $84694 $25419

Weighted-average class common Stock outstanding 125894644 109511290 102099180

Weighted-average class Non-Voting Common Stock outstanding 2791917 2939387 2350200

Weighted-average class Restricted common Stock outstanding 1459128 2028270 2028270

Total weighted-average common shares outstanding for basic computations 130145689 114478947 106477650

Earnings for diluted computations $238761 $84694 $25419

Dilutive stock options and restricted stock 10666323 12969753 9750730

Average number of common shares outstanding for diluted computations 140812012 127448700 116228380

Earnings per common share

Basic 1.83 0.74 0.24

Diluted 1.70 0.66 0.22

Restructuring Charge

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 the Company finalized cost

restructuring plan to reduce certain personnel and infrastructure

costs This plan was implemented in response to continued

budget constraints and uncertainty in the industry and to provide

funds to increase resources dedicated to growth areas across the

Companys markets As part of this cost restructuring plan the

Company reduced overall headcount by approximately 2% with

higher percentage of reductions in the senior ranks The Company

incurred an associated restructuring charge of $15.7 million

pretax in the three months ended March 31 2012 relating to the

one-time termination benefits The entire amount of this charge

will result in future cash expenditures

The following table details the activity and balance of the

restructuring liability for the year elided March 31 2012

Restracturing Charge

Balance as of April 2011

Restructuring costs $15660

Cash payments 4518

Balance as of March 31 2012 $11142

Amounts contained in balance sheet

Accrued compensation and benefits $11142

Total $11142

The accrued amounts related to the restructuring charge will be

paid through fiscal 2013

The Company evaluated whether some portion of the restructuring

charge incurred above is recoverable under our cost-reimbursable

contracts which resulted in additional revenue of $4.5 million

recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

GO DW IL

As of March 31 2012 and 2011 goodwill was $1188.0 million

and $1163.5 million respectively The increase in the carrying

amount of goodwill is primarily attributable to the increase in

the deferred payment obligation as result of the release of

approximately $35.0 million of reserves for uncertain tax

positions offset by $10.7 million reduction to goodwill related to

the sale of the Companys state and local transportation business

On December 31 2011 the Company adopted new Goodwill

impairment guidance whereby the Company performed

qualitative assessment of whether the fair value of the reporting

unit was less than the carrying value of equity In making this

assessment the Company considered all relevant events and

circumstances These include but are not limited to

macroeconomic conditions industry and market considerations

and the reporting units overall financial performance Based on

the qualitative assessment at January 2012 the Company

believes that it was not likely i.e likelihood of more than 50

percent that the fair value of the reporting unit was less than the

carrying amount During the fiscal years ended March 31 2012

2011 and 2010 the Company did not record any goodwill

impairment Further the Company does not consider any of the

goodwill at risk of impairment
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consisted of the following

The Company performed an annual impairment test of the trade

name as of January 2012 and 2011 noting no impairment

Amortization expense for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal

2010 was $16.4 million $28.6 million and $40.6 million

respectively There were no intangible assets prior to the Merger

Transaction The following table summarizes the estimated annual

amortization expense for future periods indicated below

For the Fiscal Year Ending March 31

2013 $12509

2014 8450

2015 4225

2016 4225

2017 4225

Thereafter

$33634

Accounts Receivable Net

Accounts receivable net consisted of the following

March 31 2012 2011

current

Accounts receivablebilled 436314 466688

Accounts receivableunbilled 641800 645664

Allowance for doubtful accounts 799 1348

Accounts receivable net 1077315 1111004

Long-term

lJnbilled receivables related to retainage and

holdbacks 24163 17075

Total accounts receivable net $1101478 $1128079

The Company recognized provision for doubtful accounts

including certain unbilled reserves of $2.7 million $230000

and $1.4 million for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010

respectively Long-term unbilled receivables related to retainage

holdbacks and long-term rate settlements to be billed at contract

closeout are included in non-current assets as accounts

receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

As of March 31 2012

Accumulated

Amortization Net Carrying Value Gross Carrying Value

Property and Equipment Net

Accumulated

Amortization

The components of property and equipment net were as follows

March 31 2012 2011

Furniture and equipment 131461 111513

computer equipment 49602 58163

Software 33248 28583

Leasehold improvements 144528 113266

Total 358839 311525

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 167760 138095

Property and equipment net 191079 173430

Property and equipment net includes $13.2 million and

$14.7 million of internally developed software net of depreciation

as of March 31 2012 and 2011 respectively Depreciation and

amortization expense relating to property and equipment for

fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 was $58.8 million

$52.0 million and $55.2 million respectively During fiscal

2012 the Company reduced the gross cost and accumulated

depreciation and amortization by $35.7 million for zero net book

value assets deemed no longer in service

Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses consisted of the

following

March 31 2012 2011

vendor payables $288377 $279801

Accrued expenses 154640 123863

Other 934 2646

Total accounts payable and other accrued

expenses $443951 $406310

Accrued expenses consisted primarily of the Companys reserve

related to potential cost disallowance in conjunction with

government audits Refer to Note 19 for further discussion of

this reserve

Gross Carrying Value

As of March 312011

Net Carrying Value

Amortizable intangible assets

contract backlog $160615 $127265 33350 $160800 $111330 49470

Favorable leases 2800 2516 284 2800 2232 568

Total $163415 $129781 33634 $163600 $113562 50038

Unamortizable intangible assets

Trade name $190200 $190200 $190200 $190200

Total $353615 $129781 $223834 $353800 $113562 $240238
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Accrued Compensation and Benefits

Accrued compensation and benefits consisted of the foflowing

March 31 2012 2011

Bonus 83464 $136503

Retirement 86723 93826

Vacation 143154 133643

Other 44531 33024

Total accrued compensation and benefits $357872 $396996

10 Deferred Payment Obligation

In connection with the Merger Transaction on July 31 2008

the Company established DPO of $158.0 million payable

by 8.5 years after the Closing Date less any settled claims

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement $78.0 million of the

$158.0 million DPO was required to be paid in full to the selling

shareholders On December 11 2009 in connection with the

Recapitalization Transaction $100.4 million was paid to the

selling shareholders of which $78.0 million was the repayment

of that portion of the DPO with approximately $22.4 million

representing accrued interest

The remaining $80.0 million is available to indemnify the

Company for certain pre-acquisition tax contingencies related

interest and penalties and other matters pursuant to the Merger

Agreement Any amounts remaining after the settlement of claims

will be paid out to the selling shareholders As of March 31 2012

and 2011 the Company has recorded $55.3 million and

$90.5 million respectively for pre-acquisition uncertain tax

positions of which approximately $17.5 million and $52.7 million

respectively may be indemnified under the remaining available

DPO During fiscal 2012 the Company favorably settled

$35.0 million of its pre-acquisition uncertain tax positions

thereby reducing the estimated amount to be indemnified under

the remaining available DPO and irlcreasing the DPO amount to be

paid to the selling shareholders Accordingly the $63.1 million

and $38.2 million DPO balance recorded as of March 31 2012

and 2011 respectively within other long-term liabilities in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets represents the

residual balance estimated to be paid to the selling shareholders

based on consideration of contingent tax claims accrued interest

and other matters Interest is accrued at rate of 5% per six-

month period on the unpaid DPO balance net of any settled

claims or payments which was $80.0 million as of March 31

2012 and 2011

reconciliation of the principal balance of the DPO to the amount

recorded in the consolidated balance sheets for the periods

presented are as follows

March 31 2012 2011

Deferred payment obligation 80000 80000

Indemnified pre-acquisition uncertain

tax positions 17543 52743
Accrued interest 681 10904

Amount recorded in the consolidated

balance sheets 63138 38161

On February 29 2012 the Company paid $19.4 million of accrued

interest to the selling shareholders

11 Debt

Debt consisted of the following

March 31 2012 2011

Interest Outstanding Interest Outstanding

Rate Balance Rate Balance

Senior secured credit agreement

Tranche Loans 2.49% $472870 2.81% $497185

Tranche Loans 3.75% 492555 4.00% 497143

Total 965425 994328

current portion of long-term debt 42500 30000

Long-term debt net of

current portion $922925 $964328

The Company maintains Senior Secured Agreement as

amended with syndicate of lenders In connection with the

Refinancing Transaction the Senior Secured Agreement was

amended and restated effective February 2011 to amend the

term loan facilities and increase the Companys revolving credit

facility The Senior Secured Agreement as amended provides

for $1.0 billion in term loans $500.0 million of Tranche Loans

and $500.0 million of Tranche Loans and $275.0 million

revolving credit facility The loans under the Senior Secured

Agreement as amended are secured by substantially all of the

Companys assets

The Senior Secured Agreement as amended requires quarterly

principal payments of 1.25% of the stated principal amount of

the Tranche Loans with annual incremental increases to

1.875% 2.50% 3.125% and 16.25% prior to the Tranche

Loans maturity date of February 2016 and 0.25% of the

stated principal amount of the Tranche Loans with the

remaining balance payable on the Tranche Loans maturity date

of August 2017 Both these stated principal repayment

schedules are reflected in the table below The revolving credit

facility matures on July 31 2014 at which time any outstanding

principal balance is due in full
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The following table summarizes required future debt principal repayments

Payments Due By March 31 Totaf 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Tranche Loans 475000 37500 50000 62500 325000

Tranche Loans 495000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 470000

Total $970000 $42500 $55000 $67500 $330000 $5000 $470000

At the Companys option the interest rate on borrowings under

the Senior Credit Facilities may be based on the Eurocurrency

rate or the alternate base rate or ABR plus in each case an

applicable margin subject to the Eurocurrency rate and ABR

being no lower than 1.00% or 2.00% respectively in the case of

Tranche Loans Subject to leveraged based pricing grid the

applicable margins on Tranche Loans range from 2.00% to

2.75% with respect to Eurocurrency loans or 1.00% to 1.75% with

respect to ABR loans The applicable margins on Tranche Loans

will be 3.00% with respect to Eurocurrency loans or 4.00% with

respect to ABR loans stepping down in each case to 2.75% and

3.75% respectively when the total leverage ratio is less than or

equal to 1.75 to 1.00 The revolving credit facility margin and

commitment fee are subject to the leveraged based pricing grid

set forth in the Senior Secured Agreement

On March 2012 for the Tranche Loans the Company entered

into 1-month LIBOR to lock in the all-in rate at 2.49% which

consists of the 2.25% margin plus 0.24% On February 2012

for the Tranche Loans the Company entered into 6-month

LIBOR to lock in the all-in rate of 4.00% which consists of the

1.00% floor plus the 3.00% margin The Tranche margin was

reduced to 2.75% upon the submission of our December 31

2011 financial statements to our lenders on February 13 2012

The Companys leverage ratio qualified for lower margin effective

on the date of lender packet submission to our lenders As

result the all-in rate was reduced to 3.75% effective February 13

2012 Depending on market conditions Tranche Loans and

Tranche Loans will reprice under the most appropriate LIBOR

term Currently the Tranche Loans do not have variable rate

as the floor has not been exceeded

During fiscal 2012 interest payments of $14.4 million and

$20.2 million were made for Tranche Loans and Tranche

Loans respectively During fiscal 2011 interest payments of

$3.9 million $37.0 million $19.1 million $49.9 million and

$46000 were made for Tranche Loans Tranche Loans

Tranche Loans the Mezzanine Term Loan and the revolving

credit facility respectively As of March 31 2012 and 2011 no

amounts were outstanding on the revolving credit facility

In addition to the Refinancing Transaction the Company made

optional repayments on the Senior Credit Facilities and the

mezzanine credit facility during fiscal 2011 In accordance with

the terms of the Mezzanine Credit Agreement the Company

also paid prepayment penalties of 3.00% of the respective

principal repayment amounts In addition the Company wrote-off

ratable portions of debt issuance costs or DIC and original

issue discount or OlD associated with each repayment on

the Senior Credit Facilities and the mezzanine credit facility
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These amounts were reflected in other net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations The refinancing transaction and

optional repayments on the Senior Credit Facilities and the mezzanine credit facility and the associated prepayment penalties and

write-off of DIC and OlD during fiscal 2011 were as follows

Principal Prepayment Write-Off Write-Off Total

Date Term Facility Payment Penalties of DIC of DID Expense

February 2011 Tranches and Loans $1021463 $11374 6432 $17806

Mezzanine 222076 6662 8287 1768 16717

December 21 2010 Mezzanine 32494 975 1229 262 2466

November 26 2010 Mezzanine 210430 6313 8022 1712 16047

August 2010 Mezzanine 85000 2550 3359 732 6641

$1571463 $16500 $32271 $10906 $59677

The December 21 2010 and November 26 2010 repaymenrs and prepayment penalties were paid with net proceeds from the sale of shares of the Companys Class Common Stock

The total outstanding debt balance is recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets net of unamortized discount of

$4.6 million and $5.7 million as of March 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The Senior Secured Agreement as amended requires the maintenance of certain financial and non-financial covenants As of March 31

2012 the Company was in compliance with all of its covenants

12 Deferred Financing Costs

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of DIC for the

periods presented are as follows

March 31 2012 2011

Beginning of year $20973 52042

Amortization 4783 6990
Write-off related to optional debt repayments 32271
Additional DIC related to February 2011

Refinancing Transaction 8192

End of year $16190 20973

Costs incurred in connection with the February 2011 Refinancing

Transaction were $12.5 million of which $8.2 million was recorded

as other long-term assets and will be amortized and reflected in

interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations

over the lives of the loans Amortization of these costs will be

accelerated to the extent that any prepayment is made on the

Senior Credit Facilities The remaining amount of $4.3 million

which was not deferred was recorded as general and administrative

expenses in the consolidated statements of operations
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Absent any prepayment accelerations of DIC or the effect of changes in interest rates the following table summarizes the estimated

annual amortization expense of DIC using the effective interest rate method as component of interest expense for the future periods

indicated below

DIC Amortization Expense

Payments Doe By March 31 Tonal 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Tranche Loans 8022 2504 2327 2077 1114

Tranche Loans 5003 879 903 929 960 987 345

Revolver 3165 1356 1356 453

Total $16190 $4739 $4586 $3459 $2074 $987 $345

13 Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense were as follows

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Current

U.S Federal 11893 4880 2664

State and local 17241 5487 1074

Total current 29134 607 3738

Deferred

U.S Federal 71683 40290 18004

State and local 3102 2473 1833

Total deferred 74785 42763 19837

Total $103919 $43370 $23575

reconciliation between income tax computed at the U.S federal

statutory income tax rate to income tax expense from operations

are as follows

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Income tax expense computed at

U.S Statutory rate 35% $120356 44822 $17148

Increases reductions

resulting from

Changes in uncertain tax

positions 32528 10142
State income taxes net of the

federal tax benefit 13431 6039 2913

Meals and entertainment 2177 2684 2552

Release of Valuation Allowance 5211
Gain on sale of state and local

transportation business 3772

Other 1922 33 962

Income tax expense from

operations $103919 43370 $23575

Significant components of the Companys net deferred income tax

liability asset were as follows

March 31 2012 2011

Deferred income tax assets

Accrued expenses 61651 53675

Stock-based compensation 57286 56114

Pension and postretirement insurance 26799 22785

Property and equipment 5305 31982

Net operating loss carryforwards 1407 57124

Capital loss carryforward 36335 42379

AMT 8353

Deferred rent and tenant allowance 19529 18101

Other 9985 12440

Total gross deferred income taxes 218297 302953

Less Valuation allowance 36335 42379

Total net deferred income tax assets 181962 260574

Deferred income tax liabilities

Unbilled receivables 138510 138667

Intangible assets 87923 94789

Debt issuance costs 4881 6926

Other 2351

Total deferred tax liabilities 233665 240382

Net deferred income tax liability asset 51703 20192

Deferred tax balances reflect the impact of temporary differences

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax

basis and are stated at the tax rates expected to be in effect

when taxes are actually paid or recovered valuation allowance

is provided against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than

not that some or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized

In determining if the Companys deferred tax assets are

realizable management considers all positive and negative

evidence including the history of generating book earnings future

reversals of existing taxable temporary differences projected

future taxable income as well as any tax planning strategies
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The Company recognized valuation allowance of $36.3 million

and $42.4 million as of March 3L 2012 and 2011 respectively

against the deferred tax asset associated with the capital loss

carryforward of equal amounts for the respective periods The

capital loss carryforward is scheduled to expire on March 31

2013 at which time the associated valuation allowance is

expected to be released For all other deferred tax assets the

Company believes it is more likely than not that the results of

future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize

these deferred tax assets

At March 31 2011 the Company had approximately $148.8 million

of net operating loss or NOL carryforwards As of March 31 2012

the Company has fully utilized its NOL carryforward as it relates to

the U.S Federal tax benefit remaining $2.2 million of State

NOL carryforward remains as of March 31 2012 which consists

of the California NOL carryforward that the Company anticipates

utilizing by March 31 2013 The Company believes that it is more

likely than not that the company will generate sufficient taxable

income to fully realize the tax benefit of our State NOL carryforwards

when the statute expires in 2028

UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Company maintains reserves for uncertain tax positions

related to tax benefits recognized in prior years These reserves

involve considerable judgment and estimation and are evaluated

by management based on the best information available including

changes in tax regulations and other information As of March 31

2012 and 2011 the Company has recorded $55.3 million and

$90.5 million respectively of reserves for uncertain tax positions

of which approximately $17.5 million and $52.7 million respectively

may be indemnified under the remaining available DPO

Included in the balance of reserves for uncertain tax positions

at March 31 2012 and 2011 are potential tax benefits of

$55.0 million and $77.3 million respectively that if recognized

would impact the effective tax rate reconciliation of the

beginning and ending amount of potential tax benefits for the

periods presented are as follows

March 31 2012 2011

Beginning of year 77304 $85982

Federal benefit from change in reserve 1036

Settlements with taxing authorities 14399 129
Lapse of statute of limitations 9046 8549

End of year 54895 $77304

For the fiscal year ended March 31 2012 the Companys

reserves for uncertain tax positions decreased primarily as

result of $24.0 million release of reserves for uncertain tax

positions and related interest and penalties due to the

settlement of the Companys Internal Revenue Service or IRS

audit for fiscal years 2004 2005 and 2006 and an $11.0 million

release of federal income tax reserves and related interest and

penalties due to lapse in the statute of limitations for the tax

year ended March 31 2008

The Company recognized accrued interest and penalties related

to the reserves for uncertain tax positions in the income tax

provision Included in the total reserve for uncertain tax positions

are accrued penalties and interest of approximately $387000

and $13.2 million at March 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

The Company settled its IRS audit for fiscal years 2004 2005

and 2006 during the second quarter of fiscal 2012 The IRS

adjusted tile Companys research credit claims for the audit

years The adjustments did not result in material change to the

Companys financial position Due to the federal audit settlement

the Company released approximately $24.0 million of reserves

for uncertain tax positions The Company is also subject to taxes

imposed by various taxing authorities including state and foreign

jurisdictions Tax years 2009 forward that remain open and

subject to examination related to state and foreign jurisdictions

are not considered to be material or will be indemnified under

the merger agreement Additionally due to statute of limitations

expirations and potential audit settlements it is reasonably

possible that $32.9 million of the reserves recorded on

previously recognized tax benefits may be effectively settled

by March 31 2013

14 Employee Benefit Plans

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company sponsors the Employees Capital Accumulation

Plan or ECAP which is qualified defined contribution plan

that covers eligible U.S and international employees ECAP

provides for distributions subject to certain vesting provisions

to participants by reason of retirement death disability or

termination of employment Total expense under ECAP for

fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 was $235.4 million

$228.6 million and $210.3 million respectively and the

Company-paid contributions were $242.5 million $223.7 million

and $196.3 million respectively
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT

BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains and administers defined benefit

retirement plan and postretirement medical plan for current

retired and resigned officers

The Company established non-qualified defined benefit plan for

all Officers in May 1995 or Retired Officers Bonus Plan which

pays lump-sum amount of $10000 per year of service as an

Officer provided the Officer meets retirement vesting requirements

The Company also provides fixed annual allowance after

retirement to cover financial counseling and other expenses The

Retired Officers Bonus Plan is not salary related but rather is

based primarily on years of service

In addition the Company provides postretirement healthcare

benefits to former Officers under medical indemnity insurance

plan with premiums paid by the Company This plan is referred

to as the Officer Medical Plan

The Company recognizes liability for the defined benefit plans

underfunded status measures the defined benefit plans

obligations that determine its funded status as of the end of the

fiscal year and recognizes as component of accumulated other

comprehensive income the changes in the defined benefit plans

funded status that are not recognized as components of net

periodic benefit cost

The components of net postretirement medical expense for the

Officer Medical Plan were as follows

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have significant effect on

the amounts reported for the healthcare plans one-percentage-

point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates calculated

as of March 31 2012 would have the following effects

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost 1182883 961289

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 10087560 8192956

Total pension expense consisting of service and interest

associated with the Retired Officers Bonus Plan was $868000

$864000 and $800000 for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal

2010 respectively Benefits paid associated with the Retired

Officers Bonus Plan were $1.2 million $647000 and $300000

for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 respectively The

end-of-period benefit obligation of $4.6 million and $5.2 million

as of March 31 2012 and 2011 respectively is included in

postretirement obligations within other long-term liabilities in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of March 31 2012

includes unrecognized net actuarial loss of $5.5 million net of

taxes of $2.2 million that have not yet been recognized in net

periodic pension cost for the Retired Officers Bonus Plan and

the Officer Medical Plan Accumulated other comprehensive loss

as of March 31 2011 includes unrecognized net actuarial loss

of $2.7 million net of taxes of $1.1 million that have not yet

been recognized in net periodic pension cost for the Retired

Officers Bonus Plan and the Officer Medical Plan

$6899 $5932 $4951

The weighted-average discount rate used to determine the year-

end benefit obligations were as follows

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Officer Medical Plan 5.00% 5.75% 5.75%

Retired Officers Bonus Plan 5.00% 5.75% 5.75%

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates for the Officer Medical Plan

at March 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income

expected to be recognized as components of net periodic cost in

fiscal 2013 are $1.5 million of net loss $0 of net prior service

cost credit and $0 of net transition asset obligation

The changes in the benefit obligation plan assets and funded

status of the Officer Medical Plan were as follows

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Benefit obligation

beginning of the year $52753 $45455 $35577

Service cost 3912 3363 2682

Interest cost 2987 2569 2270

Actuarial loss 5666 3053 6673

Benefits paid 1733 1687 1747

Benefit obligation

end of the year $63585 $52753 $45455

Changes in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

beginning of the year

Employer contributions 1733 1687 1747

Benefits paid 1733 1687 1747

Fair value of plan assets

end of the year

Fiscal Year Ended March 31

Service cost

Interest cost

Total postretirement medical

expense

2012 2011 2010

$3912 $3363 $2682

2987 2569 2269

Pre-65 Initial Rate 2012 2011

Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline

the ultimate trend rate

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate

8.0% 7.5%

5.0% 5.0%

2019 2018
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As of March 31 2012 and 2011 the unfunded status of the

Officer Medical Plan was $63.9 million and $52.8 million

respectively

The postretirement benefit liability for the Officer Medical Plan

is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets

FUNDED STATUS FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

Generally annual contributions are made at such times and in

amounts as required by law and may from time to time exceed

minimum funding requirements The Retired Officers Bonus Plan

is an unfunded plan and contributions are made as benefits are

paid for all periods presented As of March 31 2012 and 2011

there were no plan assets for the Retired Officers Bonus Plan

and therefore the accumulated liability of $4.6 million and

$5.2 million respectively is unfunded The liability will be

distributed in lump-sum payment as each Officer retires

The expected future medical benefit payments and contributions

are as follows

For the Fiscal Year Ending March 31 Officer Medical Plan Benefits

2013 1947

2014 2160

2015 2467

2016 2757

2017 3098

20182022 23422

15 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following

March 31 2012 2011

Deferred rent 49716 45878

Deferred compensation 22440 22408

Stock-based compensation 27721 31392

Deferred payment obligation 63138 38161

Postretirement obligation 68225 57997

Other 5713

Total other long-term liabilities $236953 $195836

In fiscal 2012 and 2011 the Company recorded stock-based

compensation liability of $36.7 million and $40.4 million

respectively including $8.9 million and $9.0 million respectively

expected to be paid within one year related to the reduction in

stock option exercise price associated with the December 2009

dividend Options vested and not yet exercised that would have

had an exercise price below zero as result of the dividend were

reduced to one cent with the remaining reduction to be paid in

cash upon exercise of the options Refer to Note 17 for further

discussion of the December 2009 dividend

The Company maintains deferred compensation plan or EPP

established in January 2009 for the benefit of certain employees

The EPP allows eligible participants to defer all or portion of

their annual performance bonus reduced by amounts withheld for

the payment of taxes or other deductions required by law The

Company makes no contributions to the EPP but maintains

participant accounts for deferred amounts and interest earned

The amounts deferred into the EPP will earn interest at rate of

return indexed to the results of the Companys growth as defined

by the EPP In each subsequent year interest will be compounded

on the total deferred balance Employees must leave the money in

the EPP until 2014 The deferred balance generally will be paid

within 180 days of the final determination of the interest to be

accrued for 2014 upon retirement or termination As of

March 31 2012 and 2011 the Companys liability associated

with the EPP was $22.4 million

16 Stockholders Equity

STOCK SPLIT

On September 21 2010 the Companys Board of Directors

approved an amended and restated certificate of incorporation

that was filed on November 2010 thereby effecting ten-for-

one stock split of all the outstanding shares of Class Common

Stock Class Non-voting Common Stock Class Restricted

Common Stock and Class Special Voting Common Stock Par

value for Class Common Stock Class Non-Voting Common

Stock and Class Restricted Common Stock remained at

$0.01 par value per share Par value for Class Special Voting

Stock was split ten-for-one to become $0003 per share All

issued and outstanding common stock and stock options and

per share amounts of the Company contained in the financial

statements have been retroactively adjusted to reflect this stock

split for all periods presented

The amended and restated certificate of incorporation also

eliminated the Class Merger Rolling Common Stock and the

Class Non-Voting Restricted Common Stock
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COMMON STOCK

Holders of Class Common Stock Class Restricted Common

Stock and Class Special Voting Common Stock are entitled to

one vote for each share as holder The holders of the Voting

Common Stock shall vote together as single class The holders

of Class Non-Voting Common Stock have no voting rights

When shares of Class Non-Voting Common Stock or Class

Restricted Common Stock are sold on the open market they

become Class Common Stock shares During fiscal 2012

566005 and 495250 shares of Class Non-Voting Common

Stock and Class Restricted Common stock respectively were

sold and converted to Class Common Stock shares

Class Restricted Common Stock is restricted in that holders

shares vest as set forth in the Rollover Plan Refer to Note 17 for

further discussion of the Rollover Plan

Class Special Voting Common Stock represents the voting

rights that accompany the new options program The new options

program has fixed vesting and exercise schedule to comply with

IRS section 409a Upon exercise the option will convert to

Class Common Stock and the corresponding Class Special

Voting Common Stock will be repurchased by the Company and

retired Refer to Note 17 for further discussion of the new

options program

Each share of common stock except for Class Special Voting

Common Stock is entitled to participate equally when and if

declared by the Board of Directors from time to time such

dividends and other distributions in cash stock or property from

the Companys assets or funds become legally available for such

purposes subject to any dividend preferences that may be

attributable to preferred stock that may be authorized The

Companys ability to pay dividends to shareholders is limited

as practical matter by restrictions in the credit agreements

governing the Senior Credit Facilities

The authorized and unissued Class Common Stock shares are

available for future issuance upon share option exercises without

additional stockholder approval

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PROGRAM

In connection with the Companys initial public offering in

November 2010 the Company established tax qualified

Employee Stock Purchase Plan or ESPP which is designed to

enable eligible employees to periodically purchase shares

of the Companys Class Common Stock up to an aggregate

of 10000000 shares at five percent discount from the fair

market value of the Companys common stock The ESPP provides

for quarterly offering periods the first of which commenced on

April 2011 For the year ended March 31 2012 543903

Class Common Stock shares were purchased by employees

under the ESPP

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On December 12 2011 the Board of Directors approved

$30.0 million share repurchase program to be funded from

cash on hand special committee of the Board of Directors was

appointed to evaluate market conditions and other relevant

factors and initiate repurchases under the program from time to

time The share repurchase program may be suspended modified

or discontinued at any time at the Companys discretion without

prior notice As of March 31 2012 no shares have been

repurchased under the program

DVWEND

On February 2012 the Companys Board of Directors

authorized and declared cash dividend in the amount of $0.09

per share On February 29 2012 the Company paid dividends to

stockholders of record at the close of business on February 13

2012 in the amount of $11.9 million

17 Stock-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation

expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations

Fiscal Year Ended March 32 2012 2011 2010

Cost of revenue 8862 $14073 $23652

General and administrative

expenses 22073 34605 48245

Total $30935 $48678 $71897
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As of March 31 2012 and 2011 there was $26.6 million and $40.6 million respectively of total unrecognized compensation cost

related to unvested stock compensation agreements The unrecognized compensation cost as of March 31 2012 is expected to be

fully amortized over the next 5.25 years Absent the effect of accelerating stock compensation cost for any departures of employees

who may continue to vest in their equity awards the following tables summarizes the estimated annual compensation cost for the

future periods indicated below excludes any future awards

Total Unrecognized Compensation Cost

Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Officers Rollover Stock Plan 3919 3282 637

Equity Incentive Plan 18441 10037 4982 2343 895 174 10

class Restricted common Stock 4255 2836 1201 218

Total $26615 $16155 $6820 $2561 $895 $174 $10

OFFICERS ROLLOVER STOCK PLAN

The Rollover Plan was adopted as mechanism to enable the

exchange by the Officers of the Companys U.S government

consulting business who were required to exchange and those

commercial officers who elected to exchange subject to an

aggregate limit portion of their previous equity interests in

the Predecessor for equity interests in the Company Among the

equity interests that were eligible for exchange were common

stock and stock rights both vested and unvested

The stock rights that were unvested but would have vested in

2008 were exchanged for 2028270 shares of new Class

Restricted Common Stock or Class Restricted Stock issued by

the Company at an estimated fair value of $10.00 at August

2008 The aggregate grant date fair value of the Class

Restricted Stock issued for $20.3 million is being recorded as

expense over the vesting period Total compensation expense

recorded in conjunction with this Class Restricted Stock for

fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 was $1.1 million

$3.9 million and $7.1 million respectively As of March 31 2012

and 2011 unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-

vested Class Restricted Stock was $371000 and $1.4 million

respectively and is expected to be recognized over 1.25 and

2.25 years respectively For the fiscal years ended March 31

2012 and 2011 1755870 and 988980 cumulative shares of

Class Restricted Stock vested respectively At March 31 2012

and 2011 3971730 shares of Class Restricted Stock were

authorized but unissued under the Plan Notwithstanding the

foregoing Class Restricted Stock was intended to be issued

only in connection with the exchange process described above

In addition to the conversion of the stock rights that would

have vested in 2008 to Class Restricted Stock new options

or New Options were issued in exchange for old stock rights

held by the Predecessors U.S government consulting partners

that were issued under the stock rights plan that existed for

the Predecessors Officers prior to the closing of the Merger

Transaction The New Options were granted based on the

retirement eligibility of the Officer For the purposes of the New

Options there are two categories of Officers retirement eligible

and non-retirement eligible New Options granted to retirement

eligible Officers vest in equal annual installments on June 30

2009 2010 and 2011

The following table summarizes the exercise schedule for

Officers who were deemed retirement eligible Exercise schedules

are based on original vesting dates applicable to the stock rights

surrendered

Percentage of New Options to be Exercised

As of June 30 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Retirement Eligible

original vesting date of

June 30 2009 60% 20% 20%

Original vesting date of

June 30 2010 50% 20% 20% 10%

Original vesting date of

June 30 2011 20% 20% 30% 30%

Those individuals who were considered retirement eligible also

were given the opportunity to make one-time election to be

treated as non-retirement eligible The determination of retirement

eligibility was made as of fixed period of time and cannot be

changed at future date
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New Options granted to Officers who were categorized as non-

retirement eligible vested 50% on June 30 2011 and will vest

25% on June 30 2012 and 2013

The following table summarizes the exercise schedule for Officers

who were deemed non-retirement eligible Exercise schedules are

based on original vesting dates applicable to the stock rights

surrendered

Percentage of New Options to be Eoercised

As of June 30 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Non-Retirement Eligible

Original vesting date of

June 302011

Original vesting date of

June 30 2012

Original vesting date of

June 30 2013

If holders employment with the Company were to terminate

without cause by reason of disability or Company approved

termination these shares will continue to vest as if the holder

continued to be employed as retirement eligible or non-

retirement eligible employee as the case may be In the event

that holders employment is terminated due to death any

unvested New Options shall immediately vest in full In the event

of holders termination of employment due to death disability

or Company approved termination the Company may in its sole

discretion convert all or portion of unexercised New Options

into the right to receive upon vesting and exercise in lieu of

Company common stock cash payment pursuant to prescribed

formula The aggregate grant date fair value of the New Options

issued of $127.1 million is being recorded as compensation

expense over the vesting period Total compensation expense

recorded in conjunction with the New Options for the fiscal 2012

fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 was $11.2 million $27.3 million

and $42.2 million respectively The total fair value of New

Options vested during fiscal 2012 and 2011 was $10.4 million

and $10.4 million respectively As of March 31 2012 and 2011

unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-vested New

Options was $3.5 million and $14.7 million respectively which is

expected to be recognized over 1.25 and 2.25 years respectively

As permitted under the terms of the Rollover Plan the

Compensation Committee as Administrator of the Rollover Plan

authorized on June 2011 the payment of withholding taxes

not to exceed the minimum statutory withholding amount arising

in connection with the exercise of Rollover Options through the

surrender of shares of Class common stock issuable upon

the exercise of such Rollover Options The Company extended

this offer to the holders of the Rollover Options to provide for

an additional alternative to either paying the minimum required

withholding tax arising in connection with the exercise of the

Rollover Options from each holders existing personal funds or

from the proceeds of the open market sale of portion of the

shares issuable upon the exercise of the Rollover Options The

surrender program was limited to the Rollover Options that were

required to be exercised between June 30 2011 and

September 15 2011 and for those holders who elected to

participate the trade date was August 12 2011 for the exercise

of the Rollover Options As result of this transaction the

Company repurchased 333775 shares at $16.11 and recorded

them as treasury shares at cost of $5.4 million

EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

The EIP was created in connection with the Merger Transaction

for employees and directors of Holding The Company created

pool of options or EIP Options to draw upon for future grants

that would be governed by the EIP All options under the EIP are

exercisable upon vesting for shares of common stock of Holding

The grants of options under the EIP were as follows

Date of Grant

Estimated

Fair value of

Number of Common Stock

Options Granted at Time of Grant

May 2009 1420000 $11.81

January 27 2010 470000 11.49

February 15 2010 140000 11.49

April 28 2010 1700000 1280

August 17 2010 50000 16.85

November 16 2010 260000 17.00

March 2011 430000 18.50

April 2011 1280000 18.29

July 2011 60000 19.08

August 10 2011 140000 16.07

November 2011 190000 16.30

February 232012 345000 18.34

20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

25% 25% 25% 25%

33% 33% 34%
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Stock options are granted at the discretion of the Board of

Directors or its Compensation Committee and expire ten years

from the date of the grant Options generally vest over five-

year period based upon required service and performance

conditions Starting on February 2012 the Board of Directors

or its Compensation Committee updated vesting conditions for

stock options whereby stock options only vest upon required

service condition The Company calculates the pool of additional

paid-in capital associated with excess tax benefits using the

simplified method

The aggregate grant date fair value of the EIP Options issued

during fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 was

$18.5 million $15.3 million and $10.6 million respectively

and is being recorded as expense over the vesting period Total

compensation expense recorded in conjunction with options

outstanding under the EIP for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal

2010 was $12.7 million $17.4 million and $22.4 million

respectively The total fair value of EIP Options vested during

fiscal 2012 and 2011 was $10.7 million and $12.7 million

respectively As of March 31 2012 and 2011 unrecognized

compensation cost related to the non-vested EIP Options was

$18.4 million and $24.5 million respectively and is expected to

be recognized over 5.25 and 5.25 years respectively As of

March 31 2012 and 2011 there were 11616000 and

12865310 options respectively available for future grant

under the EIP

ADOPTWN OF ANNUAL INCENTIvE PLAN

On October 2010 the Board of Directors adopted new

compensation plan in connection with the initial public offering to

more appropriately align the Companys compensation programs

with those of similarly situated companies The amount of the

annual incentive payment will be determined based on

performance targets established by the Board of Directors and

portion of the bonus may be paid in the form of equity including

stock and other awards under the EIP If the Board of Directors

elects to make payments in equity the value of the overall award

will be increased by 20% related 10 the portion paid in equity

Equity awards will vest based on the passage of time subject to

the officers continued employment by the Company The portion

to be paid in the form of equity will be recognized in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations based on

grant date fair value over the vesting period of three years The

portion to be paid in cash is accrued ratably during the fiscal year

in which the employees provide service and paid out during the

first quarter of the subsequent fiscal year

GRANTS OF CLASS RESTRICTED COMMON STOCK

On April 2011 the Compensation Committee of the Board

of Directors granted 20231 shares of Class Restricted

Stock to certain Board members for their continued service to

the Company These shares vest in equal installments on

September 30 2011 and March 31 2012 and were issued with

an aggregate grant date fair value of $370000 On November

2011 the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

granted 1242 shares of Class Restricted Stock to new

Board member for his service to the Company These shares

shall vest on March 31 2012 and were issued with an aggregate

fair value of $20000 Total compensation expense recorded in

conjunction with these grants for the fiscal year ended March 31

2012 was $390000

On July 2011 the Compensation Committee of the Board of

Directors granted 514869 shares of Class Restricted Stock in

conjunction with the new Annual Incentive Plan adopted on

October 2010 The amount of the annual incentive payment

was determined based on performance targets established by

the Compensation Committee and portion of the bonus was

paid in the form of Class Restricted Stock Equity awards will

vest based on the passage of time subject to the officers

continued employment by the Company The portion to be paid

in the form of equity will be recognized in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations based on grant date fair

value over the vesting period of three years and the aggregate

value was estimated at $9.8 million based on the stock price of

$19.08 on the grant date Total compensation expense recorded

in conjunction with this grant for the fiscal year ended March 31

2012 was $5.6 million Future compensation cost related to

this award not yet recognized in consolidated statements of

operations was $4.3 million and is expected to be recognized

over the next 2.25 years

METHODOLOGY

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to

determine the estimated fair value for stock-based awards The

fair value of the Company stock on the date of the New Option

grant was determined based on the fair value of the Merger

Transaction involving Booz Allen Hamilton Inc and the Company

that occurred on July 31 2008 For all grants of options through

the initial public offering the fair value of the Companys stock

was determined by an independent valuation specialist For all

grants of options subsequent to the initial public offering the fair

value of the Companys stock was based on the Companys

closing price on the New York Stock Exchange
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On February 2012 the Companys Board of Directors authorized

and declared cash dividend in the amount of $0.09 per share

Therefore an annualized dividend yield of approximately 2% was

used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for all grants

issued after February 2012 Prior to this the Company did not

issue dividends and dividend yield of zero was used in the

Black-Scholes option-pricing model Implied volatility is calculated

as of each grant date based on our historical volatility along with

an assessment of peer group for future option grants Other

than the expected life of the option volatility is the most sensitive

input to our option grants To be consistent with all other implied

calculations the same peer group used to calculate other implied

metrics is also used to calculate implied volatility

The risk-free interest rate is determined by reference to the

U.S Treasury yield curve rates with the remaining term equal to

the expected life assumed at the date of grant The average

expected life was estimated based on internal qualitative and

quantitative factors Forfeitures were estimated based on the

Companys historical analysis of Officer attrition levels and actual

forfeiture rates by grant date

The weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model for stock option awards were as follows

Through Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Dividend yield 0.28% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected volatility 36.8% 39.8% 40.7%

Risk-free interest rate 2.35% 3.07% 2.90%

Expected life in years 7.00 7.00 7.04

Weighted-average grant date fair value 7.56 6.23 5.51

DIVIDENDS

On December 2009 the Companys Board of Directors

approved dividend of $4.642 per share paid to holders of

record as of December 2009 of Class Common Stock

Class Non-Voting Common Stock and Class Restricted

Common Stock This dividend totaled $497.5 million As required

by the Rollover Plan and the EIP and in accordance with

applicable tax laws and regulatory guidance the exercise price

per share of each outstanding New Option and EIP Option was

reduced in an amount equal to the value of the dividend The

Company evaluated the reduction of the exercise price associated

with the dividend issuance Both the Rollover and EIP plans

contained mandatory antidilution provisions requiring modification

of the options in the event of an equity restructuring such as the

dividends declared in July and December 2009 In addition the

structure of the modifications as reduction in the exercise price

of options did not result in an increase to the fair value of the

awards As result of these factors the Company did not record

incremental compensation expense associated with the

modifications of the options as result of the July and December

2009 dividends Options vested and not yet exercised that would

have had an exercise price below zero as result of the dividend

were reduced to one cent The difference between the one cent

exercise price and the reduced value for shares not yet exercised

of approximately $54.4 million will be accrued by the Company as

the options vest and will be paid in cash upon exercise of the

options subject to the continued vesting of the options As of

March 31 2012 and 2011 the Company reported $27.7 million

and $31.4 million respectively in other long-term liabilities and

$8.9 million and $9.0 million respectively in accrued

compensation and benefits in the consolidated balance sheets

based on the proportion of the potential payment of $54.4 million

which is represented by vested options for which stock-based

compensation expense has been recorded The Company paid

$9.0 million to option holders in fiscal 2012 to settle the New

Options exercised during the fiscal year which is included in stock

option exercises in cash flows from financing activities in the

consolidated statements of cash flows

On July 27 2009 the Companys Board of Directors approved

dividend of $1087 per share paid to holders of record as of

July 29 2009 of the Companys Class Common Stock Class

Non-Voting Common Stock and Class Restricted Common

Stock This dividend totaled $114.9 million In accordance with

the Officers Rollover Stock Plan the exercise price per share of

each outstanding option including New Options and EIP options

was reduced in compliance with applicable tax laws and regulatory

guidance Additionally the Company evaluated the reduction of

the exercise price associated with the dividend issuance As

result the Company did not record any additional incremental

compensation expense associated with the dividend and

corresponding decrease in the exercise and fair value of all

outstanding options

On February 2012 the Companys Board of Directors

authorized and declared cash dividend in the amount of

$0.09 per share The dividend was paid in cash on February 29

2012 to stockholders of record at the close of business on

February 13 2012
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for the

periods presented

The following table summarizes unvested stock options for the

periods presented

Officers Rollover Stock Plan New Options

Retirement Eligible

Options outstanding at March 31 2011

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Officers Rollover Stock Plan

New Options

4128410 o.ol Retirement Eligible

Unvested at March 31 2011

1457082 0.01

0.01

0.01

Granted

Vested

$6.76

18.07

6.44

7.74

$10.26

Weighted

Number of Average

Options Exercise Price

Weighted Aggregate

Number of Average Fair Intrinsic Value

Options Value on Grant Date

2428480

2428480

Options outstanding at March 31 2012 2671328

Non-Retirement Eligible

Options outstanding at March 31 2011 7517500

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised 751750

Options outstanding at March 31 2012 6765750

Equity Incentive Plan Options

Options outstanding at March 31 2011 11775725

Granted 2445000

Forfeited 1284072

Expired 3980

Exercised 1591391

Options outstanding at March 31 2012 11341282

$21.46 $52115

4.27 10369

$10.00 $62553

4.27 16050

$12.37 $46504

Forfeited

Untreated at March 31 2012

Non-Retirement Eligible

Unvested at March 31 2011 7517500

Granted

Vested 3758750

Forfeited

Untreated at March 31 2012 3758750

Equity Incentive Plan Options

Unvested at March 31 2011 9569730

Granted 2445000

Vested 2913805

Forfeited 1284072

Untreated at March 31 2012 7816853

0.01

0.01

6.39

18.07

7.74

11.50

4.62

Retects adjustmevtu for $4.e42 dividend issued December 11 2009 and $1087 dividend

ituued July 27 2009

Reflecto adjuotment for $4642 dividend iuuued December 11 2009 and $1087 dividend issued
9.00

Juy27 2009
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The following table summarizes stock options outstanding at March 31 2012

Stock Options Weighted Average

Outstanding Exercise Price

Reflects adjustment for $4.642 dividend issued December 11 2009 and $1087 dividend issued July 27 2009

Weighted

Average Remaining

Stock Options Weighted Average Contractual Life

Enercixable Exercise Price In years

The grant date aggregate intrinsic value for New Options outstanding and New Options exercisable at March 31 2012 was $40.3 million

and $2.4 million respectively

18 Related-Party Transactions

Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of

May 15 2008 and subsequently amended The Carlyle Group

indirectly acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of the

Company From time to time and in the ordinary course of business

other Carlyle portfolio companies engage the Company as

subcontractor or service provider and the Company engages

other Carlyle portfolio companies as subcontractors or service

providers Revenue and cost associated with these related parties

for fiscal 2012 were $1.5 million and $1.4 million respectively

Revenue and cost associated with these related parties for fiscal

2011 were $6.3 million and $5.3 million respectively Revenue

and cost associated with these related party transactions for

fiscal 2010 were $15.1 million and $13.5 million respectively

On July 31 2008 the Company entered into management

agreement or Management Agreement with TC Group US L.L.C

or TC Group company affiliated with Carlyle In accordance with

the Management Agreement TC Group provides the Company with

advisory consulting and other services and the Company pays

TC Group an aggregate annual fee of $1.0 million plus expenses

In addition the Company made one-time payment to TC Group

of $20.0 million for investment banking financial advisory and

other services provided to the Company in connection with the

Acquisition For fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 the

Company incurred $1.0 million per year in advisory fees

The CA requires the Company and Booz Co to provide to

each other the services of personnel that were either staffed on

existing contracts as of July 31 2008 or contemplated to be

staffed in proposals submitted prior to but accepted after such

date The CA will remain in effect until the termination or

expiration of the applicable contracts Revenue and expenses

are recognized as incurred

Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and

statements of operations are support services between the

Company and Booz Co under terms of the TSA and CA as well

as occupancy charges based on license agreements as

summarized below

As of March 31 2012

Accounts receivable

Accounts payable

As of March 31 2011

Accounts receivable

Accounts payable

For the fiscal year ended March 31 2012

Revenue

Expenses

For the fiscal year ended March 31 2011

Revenue

Expenses

For the fiscal year ended March 31 2010

Revenue

Expenses

Effective July 31 2008 the Company entered into transition

services agreement or TSA and collaboration agreement or

CA with Booz Company Inc or Booz Co The TSA required

the Company and Booz Co to provide to each other certain

support services for up to 15 months following July 31 2008

Revenue and expenses were recognized as incurred

An additional $4.6 million is owed to Booz Co as of March 31

2012 for payment of foreign tax credits as result of the

Germany and France audit closings

Weighted

Average Remaining

Cxntractxal Life

In yearsRange of Exercise Prices

Officers Rollover Stock Plan

$0.01 9437078 $0.01 1.07 5678319 $0.01 0.56

Equity Incentive Plan

$4.27-$20.00 11341282 $9.00 7.49 3533659 $6.21 6.98

149

65

187

91

$1438

$1936

$3712

$2889
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19 Commitments and Contingencies

LEASES

The Company leases office space under noncancelable operating

leases that expire at various dates through 2022 The terms for

the facility leases generally provide for rental payments on

graduated scale which are recognized on straight-line basis

over the terms of the leases including reasonably assured

renewal periods from the time the Company controls the leased

property Lease incentives are recorded as deferred credit and

recognized as reduction to rent expense on straight-line basis

over the lease term Rent expense was approximately $113.9 million

net of $5.7 million of sublease income $118.4 million net of

$5.8 million of sublease income and $109.5 million net of

$7.1 million of sublease income for fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and

fiscal 2010 respectively

Future minimum operating lease payments for noncancelable

operating leases and future minimum noncancelable sublease

rentals are summarized as follows

For the Fiscal Year Ending March 31

2013 82426 708

2014 76895 536

2015 65300 43

2016 49654 44

2017 25094 19

Thereafter 51542

$350911 $1350

Rent expense is included in occupancy costs component

of general and administrative expenses as shown on the

consolidated statements of operations and includes rent

sublease income from third parties real estate taxes utilities

parking security repairs and maintenance and storage costs

As result of the Merger Transaction the Company assigned

total of nine leases to Booz Co The facilities are located in

New York New York Troy Michigan Florham Park New Jersey

Parsippany New Jersey Houston Texas Chicago Illinois

Cleveland Ohio Dallas Texas and London England Except for

the Houston Cleveland and Dallas leases which expired the

Company remains liable under the terms of the original leases

should Booz Co default on its obligations There were no

events of default under these leases as of March 31 2012 and

March 31 2011 The maximum potential amount of undiscounted

future payments is $35.9 million at March 31 2012 and the

leases expire at different dates between February 2013 and

March 2017

GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING MATTERS

For fiscal 2012 fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 approximately 98%

97% and 98% respectively of the Companys revenue was

generated from contracts with U.S government agencies or other

U.S government contractors Contracts with the U.S government

upon the Company or could lead to suspension or debarment

from future U.S government contracting Management believes it

has adequately reserved for any losses that may be experienced

from any investigation of which it is aware The Defense Contract

Management Agency Administrative Contracting Officer has

negotiated annual final indirect cost rates through fiscal year 2006

are subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and

Operating Operating
from time to time and in the ordinary course of business agencies

Lease Payments Sublease Income
of the U.S government investigate whether the Companys

operations are conducted in accordance with these requirements

and the terms of the relevant contracts by using investigative

techniques as subpoenas or civil investigative demands

U.S government investigations of the Company whether related

to the Companys U.S government contracts or conducted for

other reasons could result in administrative civil or criminal

liabilities including repayments fines or penalties being imposed
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Audits of subsequent years may result in cost reductions and/or

penalties Management believes it has adequately reserved for

any losses that may be experienced from any such reductions

and/or penalties As of March 31 2012 and 2011 the Company

has recorded liability of approximately $127.2 million and

$100.2 million respectively for its current best estimate of net

amounts to be refunded to customers for potential adjustments

from such audits or reviews of contract costs incurred subsequent

to fiscal year 2006

AT ION

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and investigations

arising in the ordinary course of business including those relating

to employment matters relationships with clients and contractors

intellectual property disputes and other business matters These

legal proceedings seek various remedies including claims for

monetary damages in varying amounts that currently range up to

$40 million or have reasonably estimated outcome within that

range or are unspecified as to amount Although the outcome of

any such matter is inherently uncertain and may be materially

adverse based on current information management does not

expect any of the currently ongoing audits reviews investigations

or litigation to have material adverse effect on the financial

condition and results of operations As of March 31 2012 and

2011 there are no amounts accrued in the consolidated financial

statements related to these proceedings

Six former officers and stockholders of the Predecessor who had

departed the firm prior to the Acquisition have filed total of nine

suits with original filing dates ranging from July 2008 through

December 15 2009 three of which were amended on July

2010 and then further amended into one consolidated complaint

on September 2010 against the Company and certain of the

Companys current and former directors and officers Each of the

suits arises out of the Acquisition and alleges that the former

stockholders are entitled to certain payments that they would

have received if they had held their stock at the time of the

Acquisition Some of the suits also allege that the acquisition

price paid to stockholders was insufficient The various suits

assert claims for breach of contract tortious interference with

contract breach of fiduciary duty civil Racketeer Influenced and

Corrupt Organizations Act or RICO violations violations of the

Employee Retirement Income Security Act and/or securities and

common law fraud Two of these suits have been dismissed with

all appeals exhausted Five of the remaining suits are pending in

the United States District Court for the Southern District of New

York the sixth is pending in New York state court and the seventh

is pending in the United States District Court for the Southern

District of California As of March 31 2012 and 2011 the

aggregate alleged damages sought in the seven remaining suits

was approximately $348.7 million $291.5 million of which is

sought to be trebled pursuant to RICO plus punitive damages

costs and fees Although the outcome of any of these cases is

inherently uncertain and may be materially adverse based on

current information we do not expect them to have material

adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

20 Business Segment Information

The Company reports operating results and financial data in

one operating and reportable segment The Company manages

its business as single profit center in order to promote

collaboration provide comprehensive functional service

offerings across its entire client base and provide incentives to

employees based on the success of the organization as whole

Although certain information regarding served markets and

functional capabilities is discussed for purposes of promoting an

understanding of the Companys complex business the Company

manages its business and allocates resources at the

consolidated level of single operating segment
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21 Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

Revenue

Operating income

Income before income taxes

Net income

Earnings per common share

Basic 111

Diluted

2012 Quarters

Out of period adjustments During the fourth quarter the Company recorded an adjustment to revenue associated with the

recovery of allowable state income tax expense that in the aggregate increased revenue and operating income by approximately

$10.1 million $6.1 million net of taxes which should have been allocated to the prior quarters of fiscal 2012 in which the expense

was incurred This operating income figure does not take into account partially offsetting effect related to incentive compensation

expense The amount of the adjustment allocable to each prior quarter is not material to any of those prior quarters financial

statements and the aggregate adjustment is not material to the fourth quarter therefore the Company recorded the correction

of this error in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012

2011 Quarters

First second Third Fourth

Revenue $1341929 $1367214 $1389176 $1492977

Operating income 88745 71909 75131 83659

Income before income taxes 48085 26276 21943 31760

Net income 28169 14817 23638 18070

Earnings per common share

Basic 0.26 0.14 0.20 0.14

Diluted 0.23 0.12 0.18 0.13

Earnings per share are computed independently fur each of the quarters presented and therefore may not sum to the total fur the fiscal year

22 Supplemental Financial Information

The following schedule summarizes valuation and qualifying

accounts for the periods presented

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Beginning balance 1348 2127 1648

Provision for doubtful accounts 1502 230 1371

charges against allowance 2051 1009 892

Ending balance 799 1348 2127

Tax valuation allowance

Beginning balance $42379 $42379 $10056

Purchase accounting

adjustments 32323

Sale of capital assets 6044

Ending balance $36335 $42379 $42379

23 Subsequent Events

On May 29 2012 the Companys Board of Directors authorized

and declared regular quarterly cash dividend in the amount

of $0.09 per share In addition the Board declared special

cash dividend of $1.50 per share Both the quarterly and special

dividend are payable on June 29 2012 to shareholders of record

on June 1L 2012 The Compensation Committee as the

Administrator of the Officers Rollover Stock Plan and the

Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan made

determination to adjust the outstanding options under each plan

by reducing the exercise price of the Rollover Options by the

amount of the special dividend and by granting the holders of EIP

options dividend equivalent equal to the special dividend and

payable on June 29 2012 or the vesting of the EIP option

whichever is later

On May 29 2012 the Companys Board of Directors also

authorized the payment of the accrued interest on the DPO as of

July 31 2012 We expect approximately $3.4 million will be paid

on that date

First Second Third Fourth

$1446836 $1429044 $1442718 $1840620

98122 93665 98188 97457

85386 85522 86391 86575

51136 75332 62860 50627

0.40 0.58 0.48 0.38

0.37 0.53 0.44 0.36
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Non-GAAP Measures

We publically disclose certain non-GAAP financial measurements

including Adjusted Operating Income Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted

Net Income and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share or EPS

because management uses these measures for business

planning purposes including to manage our business against

internal projected results of operations and measure our

performance We view Adjusted Operating Income Adjusted

EBITDA Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Diluted EPS as

measures of our core operating business which exclude the

impact of the items detailed below as these items are generally

not operational in nature These non-GAAP measures also provide

another basis for comparing period to period results by excluding

potential differences caused by non-operational and unusual or

non-recurring items We also utilize and discuss Free Cash Flow

because management uses this measure for business planning

purposes measuring the cash generating ability of the operating

business and measuring liquidity generally We present these

supplemental measures because we believe that these measures

provide investors with important supplemental information with

which to evaluate our performance long term earnings potential

or liquidity as applicable and to enable them to assess our

performance on the same basis as management These

supplemental performance measurements may vary from and

may not be comparable to similarly titled measures by other

companies in our industry Adjusted Operating Income Adjusted

EBITDA Adjusted Net Income Adjusted Diluted EPS and Free

Cash Flow are not recognized measurements under accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States or GAAP and

when analyzing our performance or liquidity as applicable

investors should evaluate each adjustment in our reconciliation

of operating and net income to Adjusted Operating Income

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income and cash flows to

Free Cash Flows and the explanatory footnotes regarding those

adjustments each as defined under GAAP ii use Adjusted

Operating Income Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted Net Income and

Adjusted Diluted EPS in addition to and not as an alternative to

operating income net income or diluted EPS as measure of

operating results and iii use Free Cash Flows in addition to

and not as an alternative to net cash generated from operating

activities as measure of liquidity each as defined under GAAP

We have defined the aforementioned non-GAAP measures

as follows

Adjusted Operating Income represents operating income

before certain stock option-based and other equity-based

compensation expenses ii adjustments related to the

amortization of intangible assets and iH any extraordinary

unusual or non-recurring items We prepare Adjusted Operating

Income to eliminate the impact of items we do not consider

indicative of ongoing operating performance due to their inherent

unusual extraordinary or non-recurring nature or because they

result from an event of similar nature

Adjusted EBITDA represents net income before income taxes

net interest and other expense and depreciation and amortization

and before certain other items including certain stock

option-based and other equity-based compensation expenses

transaction costs fees losses and expenses including fees

associated with debt prepayments and iii any extraordinary

unusual or non-recurring items We prepare Adjusted EBITDA to

eliminate the impact of items we do not consider indicative of

ongoing operating performance due to their inherent unusual

extraordinary or non-recurring nature or because they result

from an event of similar nature

Adjusted Net Income represents net income before certain

stock option-based and other equity-based compensation

expenses ii transaction costs fees losses and expenses

including fees associated with debt prepayments iii adjustments

related to the amortization of intangible assets iv amortization

or write-off of debt issuance costs and write-off of original

issue discount and any extraordinary unusual or non

recurring items in each case net of the tax effect calculated

using an assumed effective tax rate We prepare Adjusted Net

Income to eliminate the impact of items net of tax we do not

consider indicative of ongoing operating performance due to

their inherent unusual extraordinary or non-recurring nature

or because they result from an event of similar nature

Adjusted Diluted EPS represents diluted EPS calculated using

Adjusted Net Income as opposed to net income

Free Cash Flow represents the net cash generated from

operating activities less the impact of purchases of property

and equipment
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Amounts in thousands except share and per share data Unaudited

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 2012 2011 2010

Adjusted Operating Income

Operating Income $387432 $319444 $199554

Certain stock-based compensation expense 14241 39947 68517

Purchase accounting adjustments 1074

Amortization of intangible assets 16364 28641 40597

Net restructuring charge 11182

Transaction expenses 4448 3415

Adjusted Operating Income $429219 $392480 $313157

EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA

Net income $239955 84694 25419

Income tax expense 103919 43370 23575

Interest and other net 43558 191380 150560

Depreciation and amortization 75205 80603 95763

EBITDA 462637 400047 295317

Certain stock-based compensation expense 14241 39947 68517

Net restructuring charge 11182

Transaction expenses 4448 3415

Purchase accounting adjustments 1074

Adjusted EBITDA $488060 $444442 $368323

Adjusted Net Income

Net income $239955 84694 25419

Certain stock-based compensation expense 14241 39947 68517

Net restructuring charge 11182

Transaction expenses
20948 3415

Purchase accounting adjustments 1074

Amortization of intangible assets 16364 28641 40597

Amortization or write-off of debt issuance costs and write-off of original issue discount 4783 50102 5700

Net gain on sale of state and local transportation business 5681

Release of income tax reserves 35022 10966

Adjustments for tax effect Ii 18628 55855 47721

Adjusted Net Income $227194 $157511 97001

Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share

Weighted-average number of diluted shares outstanding 140812012 127448700 116228380

Adjusted Net Income Per Diluted Share 1.61 1.24 0.83

Free Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities $360046 $296339 $270484

Less Purchases of property and equipment 76925 88784 49271

Free Cash Flow $283121 $207555 $221213

Reflects stoch-based compensation expense for options fur Class Common Stoch and restricted shares in each case issued in connection with the acquisition of our Company by rhe Carlyle Group under

the Officers Rollover Stock Plan Also reflects stech-based compensation expense for Equity Incentive Plan Class Common Stuck options issued in connection with the acquisition under the Equity Incentive

Plan

Reflects adjustments resulting from the application of purchase accounting in cuooectioo with the acquisition out otherwise included in depreciation and amortization

Reflects amortization of intangible assets renulting from the acquisition

Fiscal 2011 reflects debt refinancing costs iocuhed in connection with the Refinancing Transaction and certain external administrative axd other expenses incurred in connection with the iotial public

offering Fiscal 2010 reflects costs related to the modification of our credit facilities the establishment of the Tranche term loan facility under our senior secured credit facilities and the related payment of

special dividends

Fiscal 2011 reflects debt reflnanciog costs and prepayment fees incurred in connection with the Refinancing Transaction as well as certain external administrative and other expenses incurred in connection

with the initial public offering Fiscal 2010 reflects costs related to the modification of our credit facilities the establishment of the Tranche term loan facility under our senior secured credit facilities and

the related payment of special dividends

Fiscal 2012 reflects the gum on sale of our state and local transportation business net of the associated tao benefit of $1.E million

Reflects the release of iocume tax reserves

Reflects tax effect of adjustments at an assumed marginal tan rate of 40%

Reflectu restructuring charges of approximately 515.7 million incurred during the three months ended March 31 2012 net of appronimately $4.5 million of revehop recognized on recoverable eopenses

associated with the cost restructuring plan to reduce certain personnel and infrastrocture costs
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